
      
 

    
   

 

  
       

   

       

    

 

     

                 
                

                 
 

       

                

         

                  

                   

                   

      

  

   

      
 

    
   

 

  
       

   

       

    

 

     

                 
                

                 
 

       

                

         

                  

                   

                   

      

  

   



   

       

     

    

    

        

                  

   

      

     

     

 

      

 

   

   

       

     

    

    

        

                  

   

      

     

     

 

      

 

   



   

     

 

     

 

            

 

 

           

 

            

    

     

   

   

     

 

     

 

            

 

 

           

 

            

    

    

   



           

 

 

      

   

 

 

 

  

 

   

   

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

           

   

       

    

   

           

 

 

      

   

 

   

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

  

 

 

 

  

  

           

   

       

    

   



   

          

 

 

     

  

  

   

 

   

       

 

         

   

     

    

   

   

   

   

   

  

 

  

   

 

   

 

 

 

  

  

   

  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

          

       

    

    

   

 

  

   

  

   

  

  

       

 

         

  

     

    

   

    

  

    

  

  

 

  

   

 

   

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   





      

   

   

          

       

    

    

   

 

  

   

  

   

 

   

       

 

   

      

   

   

          

 

  

    

 

  

 

 

 

    

   

    

     

    

  

   

  

 

   



         

       

 

  
 

  
  

 

 

 

 
  

  

 
 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

   

 

            

 

         

   

  

    

  

 

 

    

   

  

   

  

  

  

  

 

 

    

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

   
     

  

   

         

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

   

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            

 

         

  

  

  

 

   
  

  

   

   

  

  

 

 

 

   

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

      

  

    

  

 

   



       

               

         

 

               

 

 

               

                 

                     

                   

  

    

     

  

  

   

       

               

         

 

               

 

 

               

                 

                     

                   

  

    

     

  

  

   



            

                

                

         

  

 

            

                   

                

                 

               

                     

         

  

 

     

  

            

                

                

         

  

 

            

                   

                

                 

               

                     

         

  

 

     

  



       

 

   

  

      

    

 
          

            
            

               
 

               
 

      

            

      

   

     

  

       

 

   

  

      

    

 
          

            
            

               
 

               
 

      

            

      

   

     

  



             
                 

              
     

            
               

               
               
       

                
                  
           

      

            

        

   

      

           
          

                
  

               
 

 

          

      

    

            
                
                 

             

     
     
     
         
           

                
   

  

             
                 

              
     

            
               

               
               
       

                
                  
           

      

            

        

   

      

           
          

                
  

               
 

 

          

      

    

            
                
                 

             

     
     
     
         
           

                
   

  



               
 

       

    

            
           

      

     

    

 

    

 

    

  

    

          

        

     

  

        

    

 

 

 

     

  

       

    

           
              

              

              
                 
     

  

               
 

       

    

            
           

      

     

    

 

    

 

    

  

    

        

          

             

  

          

    

       

    

           
              

              

              
                 
     

  





 

          

  

         

     

    

 

     
              

                
                

    

            

            

       

       

 

       

  

 

          

  

         

     

    

 

     
              

                
                

    

            

            

       

       

 

        

  



           

            

            

        

     

    

   

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
  

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
   

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
   

 

 

 

 
   

 
 

 

 

 

 

  
  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

    
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

    

  

 
 

 

  

  

 
 

 
 

 

  

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

  

 



 

            

 

         

          

             

  

          

       

        

 

        

   

 

 

 

 

        

 

        

 

         

 

  

 

            

 

         

          

             

  

          

       

        

 

        

   

 

 

 

 

        

 

        

 

         

 

  



           

 

            

 

               

   

 

  

     

       

            

               
                 

                 
                

    

        

          

         

          

        

          

        

          

  

           

 

            

 

               

   

 

  

     

       

            

               
                 

                 
                

    

        

          

         

          

        

          

        

          

  



         

          

        

          

        

          

         

          

        

          

        

          

        

          

      

          

     

    

       

     

                
             
              
              

       
 

  

         

          

        

          

        

          

         

          

        

          

        

          

        

          

      

          

     

    

       

     

                
             
              
              

       
 

  



     

        

  

  

    

     

     

      

      

    

    

     

      

   

    

     

     

      

      

    

    

     

      

   

          

   
    

    

    

    

       

   

      

      

     

     

      

   

  

  

     

   

   

     

    

 

      

      

     

     

      

   

  

  

     

   

   

     

    

 

  

     

        

  

  

    

     

     

      

      

    

    

     

      

   

    

     

     

      

      

    

    

     

      

   

          

   
    

    

    

    

       

   

      

      

     

     

      

   

  

  

     

   

   

     

    

 

      

      

     

     

      

   

  

  

     

   

   

     

    

 

  



     

        

  

  

   

   

      

     

    

    

      

    

      

      

    

    

    

    

    

     

  

      

       

     

     

    

   

   

   

    

    

     

     

    

 

     

      

      

       

     

     

      

   

      

     

    

    

      

    

      

      

    

    

    

    

    

     

  

      

       

     

     

    

   

   

   

    

    

     

     

    

     

      

      

       

     

     

      

   

  

     

        

  

  

  

   

      

     

    

    

      

    

      

      

    

    

    

    

    

     

  

      

       

     

     

    

   

   

   

    

    

     

     

    

 

     

      

      

       

     

     

      

   

      

     

    

    

      

    

      

      

    

    

    

    

    

     

  

      

       

     

     

    

   

   

   

    

    

     

     

    

 

     

      

      

       

     

     

      

   

  



       

    

        
     

  

      

              

           

              

             

                   

               

               

     

                 

                

            

                

                 

            

              

       

       

      

        

  

       

    

        
     

  

      

              

           

              

             

                   

               

               

     

                 

                

            

                

                 

            

              

       

       

      

        

  



    

   

             

               

            

             

               

                

    

               

            

               

                

 

  

               

      

    

 

           

             
             

             
 

                
               

    

  

  

 

    

   

             

               

            

             

               

                

    

               

            

               

                

 

  

               

      

    

 

           

              
             

             
 

                
               

    

  

 

 



      
 

          

                   

            

              

               

                

        

                   

       

          

  

         

       

       

 

        

         

  

         

         

 

       

    

        

         

  

      
 

          

                   

            

              

               

                

        

                   

       

          

  

         

       

       

 

        

         

  

         

         

 

       

    

        

         

  



          

       

  

  

 

  

  

     

       

       

  

         

       

       

 

        

         

  

         

         

 

       

    

        

       

  

          

       

  

  

 

  

  

     

       

       

  

         

       

       

 

        

         

  

         

         

 

       

    

        

       

  



             

                     

  

  

 

         

                     

  

  

   

        

  

   

        

         

  

   

  

   

       

  

             

                     

  

  

 

         

                     

  

  

   

        

  

   

        

         

  

   

  

   

       

  



 

           

             
          

      

            

    

    

     

     

                 
                

                 

              
               

              
                 

               
                 

 

               
 

        

            

         

    

 

             
           

 

                 
             

        
       
       
           

       

  

 

           

             
          

      

            

    

    

     

     

                 
                

                 

              
               

              
                 

               
                 

 

               
 

        

            

         

    

 

             
           

 

                 
             

        
       
       
           

       

  



                
   

     
            

                   
                

                 
           

         
  

        

  

                
   

     
            

                   
                

                 
           

         
  

        

  



             

           

 

                

              

   

       

 
 

        

     
 

 

      

     

    

  

 

        

      

    

 

     

      

    
 

  

    

    

 

        

                 
      

              
               

  

             

           

 

                

              

   

       

 
 

        

     
 

 

      

     

    

  

 

        

      

    

 

     

      

    
 

  

    

    

 

        

                 
      

              
               

  



               
               

              

                   
      

  

               
               

              

                   
      

  





                                                                                          
                                                                                          

                                                                                          

                                                                                          

KIPP S.T.A.R. COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30, 2022 

ASSETS 2021-22 2020-21 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 
Other 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent 
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Without Donor Restrictions 
With Donor Ristrictions 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET 
ASSETS

 $                                         -  $                                             - 
- -
- -

                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 

                                            -                                                 - 

                                            -                                                 - 

- -

 $                                         -  $                                             - 
                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 

                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 

                                            -                                                 - 

                                            -                                                 - 
                                            -                                                 - 

                                            -                                                 - 

                                            -                                                 - 

CK - Should be zero - -



 

              

                   
          

                                               
               

                                

                                 

                                      
       

                                          
                                       

 
                                 

  
               
        

              
       
              

                 

                                 

                                 

                                 

                                                                  

KIPP S.T.A.R. COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30, 2022 

 Without Donor 
Restrictions 

2021-22 
 With Donor 
Restrictions  Total 

2020-21

 Total 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District

 Resident Student Enrollment 
 Students with disabilities 

Grants and Contracts
 State and local 
 Federal - Title and IDEA 
 Federal - Other 
 Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

EXPENSES 
Program Services

 Regular Education 
 Special Education 
 Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions

 Foundations
 Individuals 
 Corporations 

Fundraising 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous income 
Net assets released from restriction 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR 

 $       

 $  

 $  

 $  

    12,892,681 
                1,253,529 

                    446,429 
                    723,314 
                1,528,956 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                      89,187 

              16,934,095 

13,311,430 
                    609,195 
                                 - 
              13,920,625 
                2,123,811 

-
              16,044,435 

                    889,660 

-
                            100 
                                 - 

-
                                 - 
                      80,486 
                        5,000 
                      85,586 

                    975,246 

                2,705,828 
                        2,505 

3,683,579 

 $  

 $                       

 $  

 $  

-  $  
-

                                 - 
                                 - 

         - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 

- 

       -  $  
            - 

                                 - 
           - 

            - 
                                 - 

- 

                                 - 

10,000  $  
                                 - 
                                 - 

-
                                 - 
                                 - 
                       (5,000)
                        5,000 

                        5,000 

                        6,549 
                                 - 

11,549  $    

12,892,681 
                1,253,529 

                    446,429 
                    723,314 
                1,528,956 
                                 - 

 - 
                      89,187 

              16,934,095 

13,311,430 
                    609,195 
                                 - 
              13,920,625 
                2,123,811 
                                 - 
              16,044,435 

                    889,660 

10,000 
                            100 
                                 - 

-
                                 - 
                      80,486 
                                 - 
                      90,586 

                    980,246 

                2,712,377 
                        2,505 

         3,695,128 

 $              

 $                        

 $                      

 $  

           13,298,708 
                  1,708,524 

              433,801 
                       951,178 

               9,378 
                                - 

                                               - 
                                               - 

                            16,401,589 

 12,544,635 
             1,539,803 

                                         - 
        14,084,438 

            2,012,741 
                                               - 
                            16,097,179 

                                 304,410 

          53,602 
                                - 

                                       - 
                                    - 

                                        - 
                      29,061 

                                               - 
                                    82,663 

                                 387,072 

             2,324,974 
                                         331 

2,712,377 
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Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the consolidated financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of KIPP NYC Public Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about KIPP NYC Public Charter School’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

(2) 



 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules, which comprise the schedule of financial 
position by school, schedule of activities by school, and schedules of functional expenses, and the 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the 
supplementary schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 28, 2022 on our consideration of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering KIPP NYC Public Charter 
Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
October 28, 2022 

(3) 



 
 

 
 

 

     
                
                               

 
                

   

 

          
                        

                      
                        
                               

                       
              

             
                      
            

   
 

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Grants and Contracts Receivable 
Due from KIPP NYC Enterprise 
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 
Property and Equipment 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 
Due to KIPP NYC Enterprise 
Note Payable 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Rent 
Capital Lease Obligation 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Without Donor Restrictions 
With Donor Restrictions 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

2022 

$  14,661,002 
8,122,752 

-
6,553,654 
6,610,756 

$  35,948,164 $   29,013,020 

$ 5,041,633 
4,788,079 

300,000 
794,644 

1,976,021 
245,803 

$   4,197,093 
-

300,000 
85,799 

-
491,607 

13,146,180 

22,493,248 
308,736 

22,801,984 

$  35,948,164 

2021 

$   7,007,553 
4,217,926 
1,753,681 
9,126,426 
6,907,434 

5,074,499 

23,566,019 
372,502 

23,938,521 

$   29,013,020 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(4) 
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KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Support 
Program Services Services 

Regular Special Management Total 
Education Education Total and General Expenses 

Employee Wages $     64,225,479 $ 4,909,974 $ 69,135,453 $ - $ 69,135,453 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 16,858,036 1,116,518 17,974,554 - 17,974,554 
Licensing and Management Fee 383,102 - 383,102 15,538,942 15,922,044 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 402,756 - 402,756 - 402,756 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees - - - 30,011 30,011 
Other Professional  Fees 1,504,712 74,954 1,579,666 - 1,579,666 
Grants to Related Entities 191,215 - 191,215 - 191,215 
Academic Programming 2,065,450 3,827 2,069,277 - 2,069,277 
Field Lessons 413,519 - 413,519 - 413,519 
Professional Development 1,221,553 - 1,221,553 - 1,221,553 
Equipment and Maintenance 3,242,230 - 3,242,230 - 3,242,230 
Student Transportation and
  Other Services 73,158 - 73,158 - 73,158 
Supplies and Materials 4,855,766 - 4,855,766 - 4,855,766 
Technology Equipment and Materials 3,684,204 - 3,684,204 - 3,684,204 
Events 461,127 - 461,127 - 461,127 
Printing and Publications 205,039 - 205,039 - 205,039 
Occupancy 10,043,155 - 10,043,155 - 10,043,155 
Telephone and Internet 1,229,081 - 1,229,081 - 1,229,081 
Insurance - - - 845,359 845,359 
Memberships and Subscriptions 57,497 - 57,497 - 57,497 
Postage and Shipping 36,975 - 36,975 - 36,975 
Bank and Other Fees 13,791 - 13,791 - 13,791 
Candidate Recruiting 14,132 - 14,132 - 14,132 
Miscellaneous 1,109,785 - 1,109,785 - 1,109,785 
Donated Goods and Services 43,086 - 43,086 - 43,086 
Depreciation and Amortization 1,927,304 - 1,927,304 - 1,927,304 
Uncollectible Receivables 234,264 - 234,264 - 234,264 

Total Functional Expenses $   114,496,416 $       6,105,273 $  120,601,689 $     16,414,312 $   137,016,001 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(6) 



 
 

 
 

 

                                      
                                                      

                                                             
                                                                                  
                                                                                                 
                                                                         

                                                                                   
                                                                
                                                                                              
                                                                           
                                                                         

                                                                                                       
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                                
                                                                                  
                                                                         
                                                                                  
                                                                                             
                                                                                  
                                                                                        
                                                                                        
                                                                                        
                                                                                        
                                                                                        
                                                                         
                                                                                              
                                                                                                       

          

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Support 
Program Services Services 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional  Fees 
Grants to Related Entities 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and
  Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Donated Goods and Services 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 
Prior Period Adjustments 

$     

Regular 
Education 

51,773,979 
13,143,043 

323,414 
267,309 

-
512,589 
948,281 

1,353,870 
8,437 

849,611 
2,463,077 

275 
3,406,613 
2,647,623 

155,586 
218,823 

1,929,785 
886,525 

-
130,795 
53,099 
27,763 
33,342 
35,661 
40,676 

2,101,093 
7,806 

462 

$ 

Special 
Education 

6,171,765 
1,591,030 

-
-
-

91,588 
-

21,701 
-

2,694 
-

-
-
-

53 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 

57,945,744 
14,734,073 

323,414 
267,309 

-
604,177 
948,281 

1,375,571 
8,437 

852,305 
2,463,077 

275 
3,406,613 
2,647,623 

155,639 
218,823 

1,929,785 
886,525 

-
130,795 
53,099 
27,763 
33,342 
35,661 
40,676 

2,101,093 
7,806 

462 

Management 
and General 

$ -
-

12,614,549 
-

40,869 
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

643,231 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Total 
Expenses 

$ 57,945,744 
14,734,073 
12,937,963 

267,309 
40,869 

604,177 
948,281 

1,375,571 
8,437 

852,305 
2,463,077 

275 
3,406,613 
2,647,623 

155,639 
218,823 

1,929,785 
886,525 
643,231 
130,795 
53,099 
27,763 
33,342 
35,661 
40,676 

2,101,093 
7,806 

462 

Total Functional Expenses $     83,319,537 $       7,878,831 $ 91,198,368 $ 13,298,649 $   104,497,017 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2022 2021 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from Local, State, and Federal Sources $  130,255,694 $  107,402,078 
Receipts from Others 1,718,944 1,036,258 
Payments to Suppliers and Vendors (53,309,306) (52,359,064) 
Payments to Employees (69,135,453) (57,945,744) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 9,529,879 (1,866,472) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of Capital Assets (1,630,628) (419,120) 

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (1,630,628) (419,120) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Note Payable - (2,000,000) 
Repayments of Capital Lease Obligation (245,802) (245,803) 

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities (245,802) (2,245,803) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7,653,449 (4,531,395) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Beginning of Year 7,007,553 11,538,948 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – END OF YEAR $    14,661,002 $      7,007,553 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH
  PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in Net Assets $     (1,136,537) $      4,815,214 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
  Provided by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation and Amortization 1,927,304 2,101,093 
Change in Assets and Liabilities: 

Grants and Contracts Receivable (3,904,826) (873,895) 
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 2,572,772 (9,039,100) 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 844,540 1,777,122 
Due to/from KIPP NYC Enterprise 6,541,760 (730,847) 
Refundable Advances 708,845 83,941 
Deferred Rent 1,976,021 -

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $      9,529,879 $     (1,866,472) 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(8) 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Operations  
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (the School) is an education corporation consisting of the 
consolidation of the former KIPP NYC Washington Heights Academy Charter School 
(Washington Heights), KIPP STAR College Prep Charter School (STAR), KIPP Infinity 
Charter School (Infinity), KIPP AMP Academy Charter School (AMP), KIPP Freedom 
Charter School (Freedom), KIPP Bronx Charter School II, KIPP Bronx Charter School III, 
KIPP Beyond Charter School. 

In fiscal years 2021 and 2022, the School served students in grades kindergarten through 
twelve. 

The major source of revenue and support for the School is from state and local funding on 
per pupil basis. The New York City Department of Food Services provides free and reduced-
price lunches and the New York City Department of Transportation provides transportation 
vouchers directly to a majority of the School’s students. Amounts with respect to these items 
are not included in these consolidated financial statements. 

Consolidated Financial Statement Presentation 
The consolidated financial statements of the School have been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting in accordance with established accounting standards for nonprofit 
entities. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations 
will be met either by actions of the School or by the passage of time. Net assets with 
donor restrictions contain donor-imposed restrictions that permit the school to use or 
expend the assets as specified. 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 

Revenue is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions, unless its use is 
limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets 
without donor restrictions. Expirations of restrictions on net assets are reported as net 
assets released from restrictions. 

Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Organization and its eight 
wholly owned subsidiaries, Washington Heights PCS, LLC, STAR Harlem PCS, LLC, Infinity 
PCS, LLC, AMP PCS, LLC, Freedom PCS, LLC, Bronx PCS II, Bronx PCS III and KIPP 
Beyond PCS, LLC. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

(9) 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits. 

Grants and Contract Receivables 
Grants and contract receivables primarily consist of amounts due from the New York 
Department of Education for federal and state subsidy programs and private grants. Grants 
and contract receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
outstanding balances. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, an allowance was not warranted. 

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 
Prepaid expenses and other assets include payments to other entities for services 
applicable to future accounting periods such as tenant contribution deposits, rental 
payments and insurance premiums. The cost of the prepaid expenses and other assets are 
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather when purchased. 

Governmental Funding 
Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status is 
based on the number of students enrolled. The revenue is recorded when services are 
performed in accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and state funds are 
recognized by the School when the conditions are met.  

Revenue from other government grants to which the School is entitled is recognized mostly 
on student enrollment. Some grants are provided for specific educational endeavors which 
are not based on student enrollment and are recorded when conditions are met by the grant 
agreement and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are 
recognized as revenue when the School has incurred expenditures in compliance with 
specific contract or grant provisions. 

Federal and state funds received prior to the services provided or the related expenditures 
being incurred are deferred and recorded as refundable advances in the statement of 
financial position. The School received cost reimbursable grants of $794,644 and $85,799 
that have not been recognized at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectfully, because qualifying 
expenditures have not yet been incurred. 

Contributions 
The School reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received 
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without 
restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements of activities as net assets released 
from restrictions. A contribution is conditional if a right of return or right of release exists as 
well as a barrier. The conditional contribution is recognized once the conditions have been 
met. 

(10) 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Donated Goods and Services 
Donated goods and services are recorded at their fair value when such services are 
rendered or goods are donated. Contributed services are recognized as contributions if the 
services: (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) required specialized skills and are 
performed by people with those skills and would otherwise be purchased by the School and 
(c) are measurable. 

A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School. These in-kind 
contributions have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements since they do 
not meet the criteria for recognition under accounting standards for contributions. 

Equipment, Improvements, and Depreciation 
Property and equipment is recorded at cost. The School capitalizes purchases of equipment 
in excess of $2,500. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Property and equipment acquired with 
certain government contract funds are recorded as expenses when the grantor retains title. 

Improvements to the facility are amortized over the useful life as there is no set lease term 
for the school building. 

Expense Allocation 
The costs of providing services have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
consolidated statements of activities and in the consolidated statements of functional 
expenses. Allocation of expenses to program services and supporting services is completed 
by direct expenses related to each function. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
The School maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed 
federally insured limits. 

Income Taxes 
The School is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code (IRC) and applicable income tax regulations of the state of New York. No 
provision for income taxes has been established, as the School has no unrelated business 
activity. 

Uncertain Tax Positions 
The School recognizes and measures its unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with 
FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes. Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to be 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it is more likely than not that the 
positions will be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities. It also provides 
guidance for derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim 
periods, disclosure and transition. 

As of June 30, 2022, the School had no uncertain tax positions that qualified for either 
recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, the School 
had no interest or penalties related to income taxes. 

(11) 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 

 
                

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Subsequent Events 
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the School has evaluated events and 
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through October 28, 2022, the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY 

The School regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and 
commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of available funds. For 
purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over the next year, 
the School considers all expenditures related to its ongoing school activities of teaching, 
educating, and other school activities. In addition to financial assets available to meet 
general expenditures over the next year, the School operates with a balanced budget and 
anticipates collecting sufficient revenue from state and local per pupil subsidy, federal and 
state grants and contributions in the next fiscal year to cover general expenditures. 

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the following financial assets could be readily made available 
within one year of the statement of financial position date meet general expenditures: 

2022 2021 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $    14,661,002 $      7,007,553 
Grants and Contributions receivable, Net 8,122,752 4,217,926 

Total $    22,783,754 $    11,225,479 

NOTE 3 KIPP NYC ENTERPRISE 

The School is related to KIPP Academy Charter Schools through overlapping governance. 
Although not formally related to any other organizations, the School’s mission is aligned with 
a set of other tax exempt organizations, all of which support education in New York City. 
The other mission-aligned tax exempt organizations include KIPP New York, Inc. (KNYI), 
KIPP Facilities Holdings, Inc., and PCS Properties Foundation, Inc., collectively referred to 
as the KIPP NYC Enterprise. From time to time, these organizations support each other 
through access to capital in support of their missions. 

Amounts due to and from the KIPP NYC Enterprise represent short-term timing differences 
of expenses incurred on behalf of the School that have not been paid or received as of the 
financial statement date and are reflected on the financial statements as amounts Due to 
KIPP NYC Enterprise. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School owed the KIPP NYC 
Enterprise a total of $4,788,079 and $-0-, respectively. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, KIPP 
NYC Enterprise owed the School a total of $-0- and $1,753,681, respectively. 

In April 2018, KNYI provided a $2,000,000 interest-free loan to KIPP NYC Public Charter 
Schools to fund operations for the KIPP Freedom Charter Schools. The loan was paid in full 
during the year ending June 30, 2021. 

(12) 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

   
        
           
      

                                   
            

         

 
 

    

 

     
                                    
                                   
                      

    
 

 
 

 

           
                      
                            

    
 

 
 

 
 
 
  

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 4 EQUIPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS 

Equipment and improvements consists of the following at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Furniture and Fixtures $      688,076 $         631,321 
Technology 7,559,833 7,049,886 
Equipment 416,323 377,423 
Leasehold Improvements 11,467,057 10,492,519 
Construction in Progress 49,323 -

Total 20,180,612 18,551,149 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (13,569,856) (11,643,715) 

Total Property and Equipment $      6,610,756 $      6,907,434 

NOTE 5 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSET BALANCES 

Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following purposes at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Athletic Programs $      22,296 $             6,167 
Arts and Music Programs 273 273 
Extra-curricular Programs 90,269 -
Academic Programs 195,898 366,062 

Total $     308,736 $         372,502 

NOTE 6 RELEASES ON NET ASSET BALANCES 

Net assets with donor restrictions were released for the following purposes at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Athletic Programs $      26,263 $              -
Academic Programs 301,262 417,544 
Student Food 9,732 47,034 

Total $     337,257 $         464,578 

NOTE 7 PENSION EXPENSE 

The School is part of the KIPP NYC 403(b) Retirement Plan, a multiemployer defined 
contribution plan, under Section 403(b) of the IRC which employees of the School can elect 
to contribute. Employees, who choose this plan, can contribute up to the level set by the 
Internal Revenue Service. The Employer match is a discretionary contribution. The employer 
contributions to this Plan amounted $2,127,604 and $1,901,592 for the years ended 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

(13) 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

           
           

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 7 PENSION EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 

The School also contributes to the Teachers Retirement System of the City of New York, a 
multiemployer defined benefit pension plan (the Plan), on behalf of eligible teachers. The 
Plan provides New York City educators with retirement, disability, and death benefit 
services. The School’s participation in the plan constitutes less than 1% of total plan 
contributions. The funded status of the Plan was 78.4% at June 30, 2019, the date of the 
most recent actuarial calculation as indicated in the June 30, 2021 plan audit. The amount 
charged to operations for contributions to this Plan amounted to $689,375 and $672,485 for 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

NOTE 8 CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

In September 2018, the School and KIPP Academy Charter School entered into a lease for 
computer equipment under a capital lease that expires in 2023. As of June 30, 2022 and 
2021, the leased equipment are reflected at a cost of $1,299,870 and related accumulated 
depreciation of $1,054,067 and $808,263, respectively. The lease requires annual payments 
of principal of $245,804. The capital lease agreement states the total annual payments are 
equal to the cost value of the leased equipment and no interest is included in the payments.  

Future minimum payments under the capital lease as of June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2023 $         245,803 

Total Capital Lease Payments $         245,803 

NOTE 9 LOAN AGREEMENTS 

On June 14, 2019, the Organization entered into a loan agreement for $300,000 with KIPP 
Foundation. Interest accrues on the note at 1% per annum. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
the outstanding principal balance of this note was $300,000. Interest expense incurred for 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, was $3,000. The loan matures and full payment is 
due in June 2025.  

Minimum loan payments for each year subsequent to June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2023 $         100,000 
2024 100,000 
2025 100,000 
Total $         300,000 

(14) 



 
 

 
 

 

 

   
 

    

  
 

    

 
    

  

   
 

 

 

   
   

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 10 SCHOOL FACILITIES 

The School occupies several facilities at no cost. The School has an agreement with the 
New York City Department of Education for the following dedicated and shared space: 

� P.S. 125, a New York City public school, located at 433 West 123rd Street, New 
York City, New York; 

� P.S. 115, New York City public school, located at 586 West 177th Street, New York 
City, New York; 

� I.S. 90, a New York City public school, located at 21 Jumel Place, New York City, 
New York; 

� M.S. 390, a New York City public school, located at 1224 Park Place, Brooklyn, 
New York; 

� M.S. 195, a New York City public school, located at 625 West 133rd Street, New 
York City, New York; 

� X859, a New York City public school, located at 2246 Jerome Avenue, Bronx, New 
York; 

� P.S. 44, a New York City public school, located at 1825 Prospect Avenue, 
Bronx, New York; 

� M.S. 45, a New York City public school, located at 2502 Lorillard Place, Bronx, New 
York.  

The School is responsible for any overtime-related costs for services provided beyond 
regular opening hours in all facilities. Costs for these kinds of services are included in 
contracted services in the accompanying consolidated statements of functional expenses. 

The School occupied 338 East 146th St., Bronx, NY, a private facility, from July 2020 
through August 2021. The lease began in July 2020 as a temporary home for KIPP 
Elements Primary School and was terminated in September 2021. Subsequently, KIPP 
Elements Primary School moved into the facility located at 501 Gerard Avenue, Bronx, NY 
(the Gerard Facility). 

The School also occupies approximately 132,500 square feet of space at 201 East 144th St. 
in the South Bronx, where the joint high school for KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and 
KIPP Academy Charter School resides. The facility was provided to the School at no cost, 
but the School must provide for continuing maintenance and operating expenses. The 
expenses are also included in building costs in the accompanying consolidated statements 
of functional expenses. 

(15) 



 
 

 
 

 

 
  

 

 
 

  
 

 

 

        
        
        
        
      

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 11 LEASE AGREEMENT 

On March 24, 2021 Gerard 501, LLC (Gerard) and the School entered into a sublease for 
the Gerard Facility. The sublease was amended and restated on November 30, 2021. The 
term of the sublease payments started September 1, 2021 and is through June 30, 2042: 
however the School intends to terminate at its first option on June 30, 2032. The annual 
base rental payments are due based on the rental payment schedule indicated in the 
amended lease agreement. The payout required for the termination option is included in the 
subsequent payment schedule and will be amortized over the life of the lease term. In 
addition per the agreement, the School shall pay additional rent expenses that include 
facility maintenance, repairs, utilities, safety and other expenses as stated in the agreement. 

Minimum annual base rentals for each year subsequent to June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2023 $      4,596,567 
2024 4,646,567 
2025 4,696,567 
2026 4,790,498 
2027 4,841,583 

Thereafter 26,677,585 
Total $    50,249,367 

The total rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $5,811,454 and 
$-0-, respectively. Total rent expense also includes short-term leases. The deferred rent as 
of June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $1,976,021 and $-0-, respectively. 

NOTE 12 TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT 

The Knowledge is Power Program Foundation (KIPP Foundation) is a national, nonprofit 
organization that trains school leaders to open and run academically rigorous public 
schools. The School is a member of KIPP Foundation’s KIPP Network of Schools and, as 
such, is eligible for a range of benefits and fee-based services. 

The School has entered into a trademark license agreement with KIPP Foundation subject 
to a license fee of 1% per pupil operating revenue not to exceed $30,000 per elementary 
school, middle school, or high school. The School incurred licensing fees amounting to 
$383,102 and $323,414 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

(16) 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 13 SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT 

The School is party to a fee agreement with KIPP NYC, LLC, a wholly owned disregarded 
entity of KIPP New York, Inc., for the back-office functions. The management fee is 12% of 
the revenue as defined in the services agreement. The management fee is 12% of the 
revenue as defined in the shared services agreement. The School incurred a management 
fee to LLC in the amount of $15,538,942 and $12,614,549 for the years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021, respectively. The amount due to LLC for shared services as of June 30, 
2022 and 2021 was $774,885 and $577,149, respectively. 

NOTE 14 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating expenses are presented in the statement of functional expenses classified 
according to the significant program activity related to the purpose for which the school 
exists or supporting service. 

The significant activities are: 

Program Services – Regular Education and Special Education 
Represents work (time and materials) that is specifically related to or necessary for the 
programming aspects of the School under the regular education and special education 
areas. The activities and related costs directly affecting students or parents fall under these 
program areas. 

Support Services 
Management and General 
Time and materials relating to operating the nonprogrammatic/back-end operational 
functions of the School are reflected as management and general expenses. These 
expenses include, but are not limited to, human resources, finance, and technology 
activities. 

NOTE 15 CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been 
provided in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for such potential claims.  

(17) 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 16 TENANT CONTRIBUTION 

As of July 13, 2020, the School entered into a lease anticipation, tenant contribution, pledge 
and repayment agreement (the Lease Anticipation Agreement) with KIPP Properties, LLC. 
In accordance with the Lease Anticipation Agreement, the School paid KIPP Properties, LLC 
a tenant contribution in the amount of $9,000,000 toward the costs of the new facilities to be 
leased to the School. As of June 30, 2021, the tenant contribution is included in prepaid 
expense and other assets in the statement of financial position. 

On August 27, 2021 the Lease Anticipation Agreement was terminated and the $9,000,000 
contribution was repaid to the Schools. 

On July 30, 2021, a lease agreement was entered into between Canal West 75, LLC and 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools, pursuant to which KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 
made a tenant contribution of $5,453,000 toward the cost of development of a school facility 
at 75 Canal Street West, Bronx, New York. As of June 30, 2022, the tenant contribution is 
included in prepaid expense and other assets in the statement of financial position. 

(18) 
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KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP STAR COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education Total 

Support
 Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 
  Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$ 8,315,819 
2,030,732 

60,000 
10,872 

-
163,227 
240,276 
104,193 
184,778 
334,292 

5,410 
561,717 
421,155 
66,014 
23,283 

282,336 
189,157 

-
3,743 
3,726 
1,317 
1,164 

143,334 
133,839 
27,542 

$ 475,520 
134,674 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 8,791,339 
2,165,406 

60,000 
10,872 

-
163,227 
240,276 
104,193 
184,778 
334,292 

5,410 
561,717 
421,155 
66,014 
23,283 

282,336 
189,157 

-
3,743 
3,726 
1,317 
1,164 

143,334 
133,839 
27,542 

$ -
-

2,002,295 
-

3,128 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

118,387 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 8,791,339 
2,165,406 
2,062,295 

10,872 
3,128 

163,227 
240,276 
104,193 
184,778 
334,292 

5,410 
561,717 
421,155 
66,014 
23,283 

282,336 
189,157 
118,387 

3,743 
3,726 
1,317 
1,164 

143,334 
133,839 
27,542 

Total Functional Expenses $      13,307,926 $           610,194 $      13,918,120 $ 2,123,810 $ 16,041,930 

(25) 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

                                                          
                                                                     

                                                                           
                                                                                         
                                                                                                             

                                                                                                
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

                                                                                                     
                                                                                         

                                                                                          
                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                          
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               

               

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP NYC WASHINGTON HEIGHTS ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education Total 

Support
 Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 
  Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$ 8,604,684 
2,264,735 

60,000 
306,906 

-
40,238 

264,992 
67,715 

134,754 
278,048 

4,912 
383,141 
458,302 
45,890 
24,022 

170,409 
188,010 

-
3,578 
4,064 
1,465 

7 
131,977 
227,739 
10,194 

$ 500,795 
124,057 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 9,105,479 
2,388,792 

60,000 
306,906 

-
40,238 

264,992 
67,715 

134,754 
278,048 

4,912 
383,141 
458,302 
45,890 
24,022 

170,409 
188,010 

-
3,578 
4,064 
1,465 

7 
131,977 
227,739 
10,194 

$ -
-

2,227,098 
-

3,209 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

122,846 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 9,105,479 
2,388,792 
2,287,098 

306,906 
3,209 

40,238 
264,992 
67,715 

134,754 
278,048 

4,912 
383,141 
458,302 
45,890 
24,022 

170,409 
188,010 
122,846 

3,578 
4,064 
1,465 

7 
131,977 
227,739 
10,194 

Total Functional Expenses $      13,675,782 $           624,852 $      14,300,634 $ 2,353,153 $ 16,653,787 

(26) 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

                                                          
                                                                     

                                                                           
                                                                                               
                                                                                                             

                                                                                          
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

                                                                                                              
                                                                                         

                                                                                          
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               

               

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
KIPP AMP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Support 
Program Services  Services 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Grants to Related Entities 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 
  Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$ 

Regular 
Education 

8,636,546 
2,198,471 

60,000 
10,853 

-
223,992 
300,000 
177,680 
48,494 

217,870 
308,628 

514 
471,146 
502,127 
137,856 
32,336 

204,637 
170,631 

-
10,255 

2,928 
1,317 
1,164 

160,321 
252,520 
20,979 

$ 

Special 
Education 

431,199 
103,263 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 

9,067,745 
2,301,734 

60,000 
10,853 

-
223,992 
300,000 
177,680 
48,494 

217,870 
308,628 

514 
471,146 
502,127 
137,856 
32,336 

204,637 
170,631 

-
10,255 
2,928 
1,317 
1,164 

160,321 
252,520 
20,979 

Management 
and General 

$ -
-

2,193,963 
-

3,150 
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

115,046 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 
Expenses 

9,067,745 
2,301,734 
2,253,963 

10,853 
3,150 

223,992 
300,000 
177,680 
48,494 

217,870 
308,628 

514 
471,146 
502,127 
137,856 
32,336 

204,637 
170,631 
115,046 

10,255 
2,928 
1,317 
1,164 

160,321 
252,520 
20,979 

Total Functional Expenses $      14,151,265 $           534,462 $      14,685,727 $ 2,312,159 $ 16,997,886 

(27) 



 
 

 
 
 

 

 

                                   
                                                                     

                                                                           
                                                                                               
                                                                                                         

                                                                                
                                                                                 
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

                                                                                               
                                                                                

                                                                                          
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                
                                                                                         
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                               

               

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP INFINITY ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Support 
Program Services  Services 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 
  Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Use of Donated Materials and Services 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$      

Regular 
Education 

23,074,393 
6,664,641 

83,102 
27,656 

-
564,352 
687,129 
81,572 

308,433 
961,543 

28,555 
2,516,632 

949,400 
124,219 
33,525 

2,181,041 
326,987 

-
13,771 

9,053 
2,437 
2,786 

359,675 
43,086 

607,285 
82,570 

$        

Special 
Education 

1,763,028 
341,712 

-
-
-

74,954 
3,827 

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 

24,837,421 
7,006,353 

83,102 
27,656 

-
639,306 
690,956 

81,572 
308,433 
961,543 

28,555 
2,516,632 

949,400 
124,219 
33,525 

2,181,041 
326,987 

-
13,771 
9,053 
2,437 
2,786 

359,675 
43,086 

607,285 
82,570 

Management 
and General 

$ -
-

4,706,751 
-

10,390 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

337,658 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 
Expenses 

24,837,421 
7,006,353 
4,789,853 

27,656 
10,390 

639,306 
690,956 
81,572 

308,433 
961,543 

28,555 
2,516,632 

949,400 
124,219 
33,525 

2,181,041 
326,987 
337,658 

13,771 
9,053 
2,437 
2,786 

359,675 
43,086 

607,285 
82,570 

Total Functional Expenses $      39,733,843 $        2,183,521 $      41,917,364 $ 5,054,799 $ 46,972,163 

(28) 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

                                                          
                                                                     

                                                                           
                                                                                               
                                                                                                             

                                                                                          
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

                                                                      
                                                                                         

                                                                                          
                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

                          

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP FREEDOM CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Support
Program Services  Services 

Regular 
Education 

Special 
Education Total 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 
  Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 

$ 6,936,484 
1,649,681 

60,000 
12,670 

-
251,338 
258,806 
11,668 

141,135 
528,570 

22,323 
341,099 
418,805 
55,647 
31,193 

313,734 
195,304 

-
18,748 

6,036 
1,323 
1,646 

141,736 
624,980 

$ 604,694 
126,370 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 7,541,178 
1,776,051 

60,000 
12,670 

-
251,338 
258,806 
11,668 

141,135 
528,570 

22,323 
341,099 
418,805 
55,647 
31,193 

313,734 
195,304 

-
18,748 
6,036 
1,323 
1,646 

141,736 
624,980 

$ -
-

1,698,175 
-

2,387 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

80,199 
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 7,541,178 
1,776,051 
1,758,175 

12,670 
2,387 

251,338 
258,806 
11,668 

141,135 
528,570 

22,323 
341,099 
418,805 
55,647 
31,193 

313,734 
195,304 
80,199 
18,748 
6,036 
1,323 
1,646 

141,736 
624,980 

Total Functional Expenses $      12,022,926 $ 731,064 $      12,753,990 $ 1,780,761 $ 14,534,751 

(29) 



 
 

 
 
 

 

 

                                  
                                                                               
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                
                                                                                         
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                         

                                                                                                     
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                
                                                                                               
                                                                                                             
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                               

                                      

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL II 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education Total 

Support 
Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 
  Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 

$ 1,907,613 
459,429 

-
2,952 

-
62,175 

138,122 
4,453 

97,933 
225,333 

8,461 
176,066 
249,488 

10,359 
32,416 

1,264,412 
25,099 

-
1,513 
1,519 
2,886 

64,222 
14,070 

$           290,302 
75,812 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,197,915 
535,241 

-
2,952 

-
62,175 

138,122 
4,453 

97,933 
225,333 

8,461 
176,066 
249,488 
10,359 
32,416 

1,264,412 
25,099 

-
1,513 
1,519 
2,886 

64,222 
14,070 

$             -
-

592,647 
-

302 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,446 
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,197,915 
535,241 
592,647 

2,952 
302 

62,175 
138,122 

4,453 
97,933 

225,333 

8,461 
176,066 
249,488 
10,359 
32,416 

1,264,412 
25,099 
1,446 
1,513 
1,519 
2,886 

64,222 
14,070 

Total Functional Expenses $ 4,748,521 $ 366,114 $        5,114,635 $ 594,395 $ 5,709,030 

(30) 



 
 

 
 
 

 

 

                                       
                                                                     

                                                                           
                                                                                               
                                                                                                             

                                                                                          
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

                                                                             
                                                                                         

                                                                                          
                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                
                                                                                         
                                                                                                         
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                               

                          

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL III 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Support 
Program Services Services 

Regular 
Education 

Special 
Education Total 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Grants to Related Entities 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 
  Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 

$        5,468,642 
1,309,426 

60,000 
23,765 

-
182,543 
191,215 
239,319 
88,075 

114,126 
345,893 

2,114 
261,550 
580,815 
14,400 
14,828 

4,470,042 
124,563 

-
5,889 
7,760 
1,317 
2,382 

97,523 
54,303 

$           744,685 
186,375 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 6,213,327 
1,495,801 

60,000 
23,765 

-
182,543 
191,215 
239,319 
88,075 

114,126 
345,893 

2,114 
261,550 
580,815 
14,400 
14,828 

4,470,042 
124,563 

-
5,889 
7,760 
1,317 
2,382 

97,523 
54,303 

$ -
-

1,818,445 
-

2,015 
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

68,374 
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 6,213,327 
1,495,801 
1,878,445 

23,765 
2,015 

182,543 
191,215 
239,319 
88,075 

114,126 
345,893 

2,114 
261,550 
580,815 
14,400 
14,828 

4,470,042 
124,563 
68,374 

5,889 
7,760 
1,317 
2,382 

97,523 
54,303 

Total Functional Expenses $      13,660,490 $ 931,060 $      14,591,550 $ 1,888,834 $ 16,480,384 

(31) 



 
 

 
 
 

 

 

                                                    
                                                                                

                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                
                                                                                               
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                         

                                                                                                              
                                                                                         

                                                                                          
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                             
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                               

                                    

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP BEYOND CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education Total 

Support 
Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 
  Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Postage and Shipping 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$        1,281,298 
282,511 

-
3,314 

-
16,561 
59,126 
7,349 

22,524 
259,923 

869 
144,415 
104,112 

6,742 
13,436 

1,156,544 
9,330 

-
1,860 
2,097 

10,997 
12,568 
63,979 

$ 99,751 
24,255 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 1,381,049 
306,766 

-
3,314 

-
16,561 
59,126 
7,349 

22,524 
259,923 

869 
144,415 
104,112 

6,742 
13,436 

1,156,544 
9,330 

-
1,860 
2,097 

10,997 
12,568 
63,979 

$ -
-

299,568 
-

180 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,403 
-
-
-
-
-

$ 1,381,049 
306,766 
299,568 

3,314 
180 

16,561 
59,126 
7,349 

22,524 
259,923 

869 
144,415 
104,112 

6,742 
13,436 

1,156,544 
9,330 
1,403 
1,860 
2,097 

10,997 
12,568 
63,979 

Total Functional Expenses $ 3,459,555 $           124,006 $ 3,583,561 $ 301,151 $ 3,884,712 

(32) 



 
 

 
 
 

 

 

                                                                                         
                                                                                                     

                                                                                    
                                                                                                               

                                                                                         
                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               

                                                                        

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP NEW YORK PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Support 
Program Services Services 

Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Grants to Related Entities 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$ 

Regular 
Education 

(1,590) 
3,768 

286 
500,000 

29 
4,615 

29,000 

$ 

Special 
Education 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 

(1,590) 
3,768 

-
286 

500,000 
29 

4,615 
29,000 

Management 
and General 

$ -
-

5,250 
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 
Expenses 

(1,590) 
3,768 
5,250 

286 
500,000 

29 
4,615 

29,000 

Total Functional Expenses $ 536,108 $ - $ 536,108 $ 5,250 $ 541,358 

(33) 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

            
            
               
              
            
              
            
              
            
              
            
              
            
              
            

          

                 
                
                 
                
                
                 
                
                 
                
                
                
                 
                
                 
                

            

               
              
               
              
               
               
               
               
               
              
               
              
               
              
             

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor/ 
Program Title 

U.S. Department of Education: 

Pass-through New York Department of Education: 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (AMP) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (AMP) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BEY) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (FRE) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (FRE) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BRX2) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BRX2) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BRX3) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BRX3) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (INF) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (INF) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (WH) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (WH) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (STR) 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (STR) 

Total Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement 

Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (AMP) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (AMP) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BEY) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (FRE) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (FRE) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BRX2) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BRX2) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BRX3) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BRX3) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (INF) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (INF) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (WH) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (WH) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (STR) 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (STR) 

Total Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal 
  Training, Recruitment 

Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (AMP) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (AMP) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (FRE) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (FRE) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (BRX2) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (BRX2) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (BRX3) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (BRX3) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (INF) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (INF) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (WH) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (WH) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (STR) 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (STR) 

Total Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation 

Assistance 
Listing 

Numbers 

84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 
84.010A 

84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 
84.367A 

84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 
84.424A 

Pass-
Through 
Grantor s 
Number 

0021-214294 
0021-224294 
0021-225720 
0021-215445 
0021-225445 
0021-215515 
0021-225515 
0021-215520 
0021-225520 
0021-214296 
0021-224296 
0021-214160 
0021-224160 
0021-214282 
0021-224282 

0147-214294 
0147-224294 
0147-225720 
0147-215445 
0147-225445 
0147-215515 
0147-225515 
0147-215520 
0147-225520 
0147-214296 
0147-224296 
0147-214160 
0147-224160 
0147-214282 
0147-224282 

0204-214294 
0204-224294 
0204-215445 
0204-225445 
0204-215515 
0204-225515 
0204-215520 
0204-225520 
0204-214296 
0204-224296 
0204-214160 
0204-224160 
0204-214282 
0204-224282 

Grant/ Federal 
Contract Disbursements/ 
Period Expenditures 

9/1/20-8/31/21 $ 55,378 
9/1/21-8/31/22 275,984 
9/1/21-8/31/22 9,296 
9/1/20-8/31/21 43,923 
9/1/21-8/31/22 316,723 
9/1/20-8/31/21 23,385 
9/1/21-8/31/22 213,321 
9/1/20-8/31/21 25,877 
9/1/21-8/31/22 310,509 
9/1/20-8/31/21 87,959 
9/1/21-8/31/22 506,085 
9/1/20-8/31/21 64,558 
9/1/21-8/31/22 292,769 
9/1/20-8/31/21 61,843 
9/1/21-8/31/22 289,387 

2,576,997 

9/1/20-8/31/21 5,929 
9/1/21-8/31/22 59,272 
9/1/21-8/31/22 2,106 
9/1/20-8/31/21 10,314 
9/1/21-8/31/22 45,426 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,232 
9/1/21-8/31/22 26,272 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,448 
9/1/21-8/31/22 41,817 
9/1/20-8/31/21 15,055 
9/1/21-8/31/22 90,151 
9/1/20-8/31/21 4,624 
9/1/21-8/31/22 48,431 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,406 
9/1/21-8/31/22 52,370 

417,853 

9/1/20-8/31/21 4,033 
9/1/21-8/31/22 19,442 
9/1/20-8/31/21 1,758 
9/1/21-8/31/22 15,677 
9/1/20-8/31/21 1,667 
9/1/21-8/31/22 8,694 
9/1/20-8/31/21 1,667 
9/1/21-8/31/22 9,614 
9/1/20-8/31/21 6,950 
9/1/21-8/31/22 35,783 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,547 
9/1/21-8/31/22 24,015 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,002 
9/1/21-8/31/22 22,374 

162,223 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
(34) 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

            
             
               
             

              
             

              
             

              
          

               
          
          

          

            
              
            
            
            
         
            
            
         

              
              
              

              
              
              
              

 
              

       

               
               
               
               
              

               

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Federal Grantor/ Assistance 
Pass-Through Grantor/ Listing 
Program Title Numbers 

U.S. Department of Education (Continued) 

Cares Act - ESSER I (AMP) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (AMP) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (BEY) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (FRE) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER I (BRX2) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (BRX2) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER I (BRX3) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (BRX3) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER I (INF) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (INF) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER I (WHA) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (WHA) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (STR) 84.425D 

Total Cares Act - Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER I) 

Cares Act- ARP (AMP) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (BEY) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (FRE) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (BRX2) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (BRX3) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (INF) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (WHA) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (STR) 84.425U 

Total Cares Act - American Rescue Plan Act (ARP) 

CSP (AMP) 84.282A 
CSP (INF) 84.282A 

Total Charter School (CSP) 

SEED (BRX2) 84.423A 
SEED (BRX3) 84.423A 
SEED (INF) 84.423A 
SEED (STR) 84.423A 

Total Supporting Effective Educator Development 
Grant Program (SEED) 

Total U.S. Department of Education 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: 
Pass-through New York Department of Education: 

Child Care Stabilization Grant (AMP) 93.575 
Child Care Stabilization Grant (INF) 93.575 
Child Care Stabilization Grant (WHA) 93.575 
Child Care Stabilization Grant (STR) 93.575 
Total Child Care Stabilization Grant 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Pass-
Through 
Grantor s 
Number 

5890-214294 
5891-214294 
5891-225720 
5891-215445 
5890-215515 
5891-215515 
5890-215520 
5891-215520 
5890-214296 
5891-214296 
5890-214160 
5891-214160 
5891-214282 

5880-214294 
5880-225720 
5880-215445 
5880-215515 
5880-215520 
5880-214296 
5880-214160 
5880-214282 

NYSED 
NYSED 

29246977 
29246977 
29246977 
29246977 

OCFS 
OCFS 
OCFS 
OCFS 

Grant/ Federal 
Contract Disbursements/ 
Period Expenditures 

3/13/20-9/30/22 $ 22,642 

3/13/20-9/30/23 816,689 

3/13/20-9/30/23 34,231 

3/13/20-9/30/23 992,214 

3/13/20-9/30/22 15,593 

3/13/20-9/30/23 470,240 

3/13/20-9/30/22 13,082 

3/13/20-9/30/23 682,912 
3/13/20-9/30/22 46,077 
3/13/20-9/30/23 2,041,270 
3/13/20-9/30/22 6,681 
3/13/20-9/30/23 1,015,933 
3/13/20-9/30/23 1,125,633 

7,283,197 

3/13/20-9/30/24 339,935 

3/13/20-9/30/24 44,084 

3/13/20-9/30/24 574,887 

3/13/20-9/30/24 163,006 

3/13/20-9/30/24 779,812 

3/13/20-9/30/24 1,093,627 

3/13/20-9/30/24 395,283 

3/13/20-9/30/24 466,773 
3,857,407 

7/1/20-9/30/20 15,600 

7/1/20-9/30/20 34,350 
49,950 

7/1/21-6/30/22 16,670 

7/1/21-6/30/22 16,670 

7/1/21-6/30/22 13,050 

1/1/22-9/30/22 16,463 

62,853 

14,410,480 

7/1/2021-9/30/2023 7,523 

7/1/2021-9/30/2023 2,587 

7/1/2021-9/30/2023 1,938 

7/1/2021-9/30/2023 1,076 
13,124 

13,124 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
(35) 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

            
               
              
               
              
            
              
              
            

             

            
         
            
              
         

         

     

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Pass-
Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor/ 
Program Title 

Assistance 
Listing 

Numbers 

Through 
Grantor s 
Number 

Grant/ 
Contract 
Period 

Federal 
Disbursements/ 

Expenditures 

Federal Communications Commission: 
Pass-through New York Department of Education: 

ECF (AMP) 
ECF (BEY) 
ECF (FRE) 
ECF (BRX2) 
ECF (BRX3) 
ECF (INF) 
ECF (WHA) 
ECF (STR) 
Total Emergency Connectivity Fund (ECF) 

32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

$ 63,562 
3,084 

48,206 
6,355 

34,114 
119,893 

41,141 
72,725 

389,080 

Total Federal Communications Commission 389,080 

U.S. Department of Agriculture: 

Pass-through New York Department of Education: 
School Food Program- Breakfast (INF) 
School Food Program- Lunch and Snack (INF) 
School Food Program- Summer School Food Service (INF) 
USDA Donation 

Child Nutrition Cluster Total 

10.553 
10.555 
10.559 
10.555 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

7/1/21-6/30/22 
7/1/21-6/30/22 
7/1/21-6/30/22 
7/1/21-6/30/22 

588,523 
1,816,341 

414,566 
43,086 

2,862,516 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 2,862,516 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 17,675,200 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
(36) 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1 GENERAL INFORMATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activities of the 
federal financial assistance programs of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (the School). 
Financial awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as financial assistance 
passed through other governmental agencies or nonprofit organizations, are included in the 
schedule. 

NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant 
activity of the School and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in 
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents only a selected portion of the 
activities of the School. It is not intended to, nor does it, present either the balance sheet, 
revenue, expenditures, or changes in net assets. The financial activity for the 
aforementioned awards is reported in the School’s consolidated statements of activities. 

NOTE 4 INDIRECT COST RATE 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost 
rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

(37) 





 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
October 28, 2022 
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Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will 
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ compliance with the requirements of 
each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 

 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ compliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 obtain an understanding of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

(41) 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
October 28, 2022 
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KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified  

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 

� Material weakness(es) identified? X  yes  no 

� Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)?  yes X   none reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted?  yes         X  no 

Federal Awards  

1. Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified?  yes         X  no 

� Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)?  yes         X        none reported 

2. Type of auditor’s report issued on 
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified 

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 
2 CFR 200.516(a)?  yes         X  no 

Identification of Major Federal Programs 

Assistance Listing Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.425D U.S. Department of Education – Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 
(ESSER I & ESSER II) 

84.425U U.S. Department of Education – American 
Rescue Plan Act (ARP) 

10.553 / 10.555 / 10.559 U.S. Department of Agriculture – Breakfast 
Program, National Lunch Program and Summer 
School Program 
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KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results (Continued) 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A or Type B programs was: $ 750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?         X  yes  no 

Section II – Consolidated Financial Statement Findings 

2021 – 001 

Type of Finding: 

 Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Condition: During the performance of the audit, adjustments for the Gerard Facility operating lease 
were required to properly record the operating lease rental expense along with its termination option 
payout on a straight-line basis and record related deferred rent. The impact on the financial statements 
was an increase in liabilities and change in net assets of $2,176,021. Timely and accurate account 
reconciliations are a necessary step in ensuring that financial statements are fairly stated in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP. 

Criteria: Management is responsible for the accuracy and completeness of all financial records and 
related information. Internal controls should be in place to provide reasonable assurance that financial 
statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

Context: Financial statements should be prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

Effect: The potential exists that misstatements of the annual financial statements could occur and not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, by the organization’s internal controls. 

Cause: During the initial evaluation of the lease, the proper accounting guidance was not applied to 
properly expense the lease on a straight-line-basis since the payments escalate throughout the term. In 
addition, the option to terminate the lease at its 10 year anniversary is required to be included in the 
lease schedule. 

Recommendation: We recommend that management evaluate all general ledger account balances to 
reflect appropriate interim and year-end balances prior to the commencement of the audit. We 
recommend all new transactions be evaluated for proper recording under U.S. GAAP. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: See accompanying corrective 
action plan for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
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KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Programs 

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with the Federal Single 
Audit Act. 

Section IV – Prior Audit Findings 

There were no prior year findings required to be reported under the Federal Single Audit Act. 
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Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the consolidated financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of KIPP NYC Public Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about KIPP NYC Public Charter School’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules, which comprise the schedule of financial 
position by school, schedule of activities by school, and schedules of functional expenses, and the 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the 
supplementary schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 28, 2022 on our consideration of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering KIPP NYC Public Charter 
Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
October 28, 2022 
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KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Grants and Contracts Receivable 
Due from KIPP NYC Enterprise 
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 
Property and Equipment 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 
Due to KIPP NYC Enterprise 
Note Payable 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Rent 
Capital Lease Obligation 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Without Donor Restrictions 
With Donor Restrictions 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

2022 

$  14,661,002 
8,122,752 

-
6,553,654 
6,610,756 

$ 35,948,164 

$ 5,041,633 
4,788,079 

300,000 
794,644 

1,976,021 
245,803 

13,146,180 

22,493,248 
308,736 

22,801,984 

$ 35,948,164 

$  

$ 

$  

$ 

2021 

7,007,553 
4,217,926 

 1,753,681 
9,126,426 
6,907,434 

29,013,020 

4,197,093 
-

300,000 
85,799 

-
491,607 

5,074,499 

23,566,019 
372,502 

23,938,521 

29,013,020 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(4) 





  
  

  

 
 

                      
                       
                     

              
                        

               
             
                 
             
          
          

 
                 

          
           

             
             
        
          

                     
                

               
                

               
          
               

           
             

                 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Support 
Program Services Services 

Regular Special Management Total 
Education Education Total and General Expenses 

Employee Wages $ 64,225,479 $ 4,909,974 $ 69,135,453 $ - $  69,135,453 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 16,858,036 1,116,518 17,974,554 - 17,974,554 
Licensing and Management Fee 383,102 - 383,102 15,538,942 15,922,044 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 402,756 - 402,756 - 402,756 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees - - - 30,011 30,011 
Other Professional  Fees 1,504,712 74,954 1,579,666 - 1,579,666 
Grants to Related Entities 191,215 - 191,215 - 191,215 
Academic Programming 2,065,450 3,827 2,069,277 - 2,069,277 
Field Lessons 413,519 - 413,519 - 413,519 
Professional Development 1,221,553 - 1,221,553 - 1,221,553 
Equipment and Maintenance 3,242,230 - 3,242,230 - 3,242,230 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 73,158 - 73,158 - 73,158 
Supplies and Materials 4,855,766 - 4,855,766 - 4,855,766 
Technology Equipment and Materials 3,684,204 - 3,684,204 - 3,684,204 
Events 461,127 - 461,127 - 461,127 
Printing and Publications 205,039 - 205,039 - 205,039 
Occupancy 10,043,155 - 10,043,155 - 10,043,155 
Telephone and Internet 1,229,081 - 1,229,081 - 1,229,081 
Insurance - - - 845,359 845,359 
Memberships and Subscriptions 57,497 - 57,497 - 57,497 
Postage and Shipping 36,975 - 36,975 - 36,975 
Bank and Other Fees 13,791 - 13,791 - 13,791 
Candidate Recruiting 14,132 - 14,132 - 14,132 
Miscellaneous 1,109,785 - 1,109,785 - 1,109,785 
Donated Goods and Services 43,086 - 43,086 - 43,086 
Depreciation and Amortization 1,927,304 - 1,927,304 - 1,927,304 
Uncollectible Receivables 234,264 - 234,264 - 234,264 

Total Functional Expenses $  114,496,416 $ 6,105,273 $ 120,601,689 $ 16,414,312 $  137,016,001 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(6) 



  
  

  

 
 

                      
                       
                     

              
                        

                  
             
               

 
                    
           

 
       

          
           

                         
             
          
             

                     
              

               
                

               
               
               

           
 

      

                       

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education Total 

Support 
Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional  Fees 
Grants to Related Entities 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Donated Goods and Services 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 
Prior Period Adjustments 

$ 51,773,979 
13,143,043 

323,414 
267,309 

-
512,589 
948,281 

1,353,870 
8,437 

849,611 
2,463,077 

275 
3,406,613 
2,647,623 

155,586 
218,823 

1,929,785 
886,525 

-
130,795 

53,099 
27,763 
33,342 
35,661 
40,676 

2,101,093 
7,806 

462 

$ 6,171,765 
1,591,030 

-
-
-

91,588 
-

21,701 
-

2,694 
-

-
-
-

53 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 57,945,744 
14,734,073 

323,414 
267,309 

-
604,177 
948,281 

1,375,571 
8,437 

852,305 
2,463,077 

275 
3,406,613 
2,647,623 

155,639 
218,823 

1,929,785 
886,525 

-
130,795 

53,099 
27,763 
33,342 
35,661 
40,676 

2,101,093 
7,806 

462 

$ -
-

 12,614,549 
-

40,869 
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

643,231 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$  57,945,744 
 14,734,073 

12,937,963 
 267,309 

40,869 
 604,177 
 948,281 
 1,375,571 
 8,437 
 852,305 
 2,463,077 

 275 
 3,406,613 
 2,647,623 
 155,639 
 218,823 
 1,929,785 
 886,525 

643,231 
 130,795 
 53,099 
 27,763 
 33,342 
 35,661 
 40,676 
 2,101,093 
 7,806 
 462 

Total Functional Expenses $ 83,319,537 $ 7,878,831 $ 91,198,368 $ 13,298,649 $  104,497,017 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(7) 



  
  

  

 
 

 
  

                
           

           
                 

 
                 

                  

 
  

            
                  

                   

        

 
       

 

                

                 
               
                   
                  
                        
            

         

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2022 2021 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from Local, State, and Federal Sources $  130,255,694 $  107,402,078 
Receipts from Others 1,718,944 1,036,258 
Payments to Suppliers and Vendors (53,309,306) (52,359,064) 
Payments to Employees (69,135,453) (57,945,744) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 9,529,879 (1,866,472) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of Capital Assets (1,630,628) (419,120) 

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (1,630,628) (419,120) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Note Payable - (2,000,000) 
Repayments of Capital Lease Obligation (245,802) (245,803) 

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities (245,802) (2,245,803) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7,653,449 (4,531,395) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Beginning of Year 7,007,553 11,538,948 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – END OF YEAR $  14,661,002 $  7,007,553 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH
  PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in Net Assets $  (1,136,537) $  4,815,214 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
  Provided by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation and Amortization 1,927,304 2,101,093 
Change in Assets and Liabilities: 

Grants and Contracts Receivable (3,904,826) (873,895) 
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 2,572,772 (9,039,100) 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 844,540 1,777,122 
Due to/from KIPP NYC Enterprise 6,541,760 (730,847) 
Refundable Advances 708,845 83,941 
Deferred Rent 1,976,021 -

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $  9,529,879 $  (1,866,472) 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(8) 



  
  
 

 

 
 

  
    

   
   

     
    

  
 

    

   
      

   
      

   
 

  
      

    
   

 
   

       
    

  
 

 
 

  
  

     
 

 
 

    
    

     

 
 

  
    

   
 

   
     

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Operations 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (the School) is an education corporation consisting of the 
consolidation of the former KIPP NYC Washington Heights Academy Charter School 
(Washington Heights), KIPP STAR College Prep Charter School (STAR), KIPP Infinity 
Charter School (Infinity), KIPP AMP Academy Charter School (AMP), KIPP Freedom 
Charter School (Freedom), KIPP Bronx Charter School II, KIPP Bronx Charter School III, 
KIPP Beyond Charter School. 

In fiscal years 2021 and 2022, the School served students in grades kindergarten through 
twelve. 

The major source of revenue and support for the School is from state and local funding on 
per pupil basis. The New York City Department of Food Services provides free and reduced-
price lunches and the New York City Department of Transportation provides transportation 
vouchers directly to a majority of the School’s students. Amounts with respect to these items 
are not included in these consolidated financial statements. 

Consolidated Financial Statement Presentation 
The consolidated financial statements of the School have been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting in accordance with established accounting standards for nonprofit 
entities. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations 
will be met either by actions of the School or by the passage of time. Net assets with 
donor restrictions contain donor-imposed restrictions that permit the school to use or 
expend the assets as specified. 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 

Revenue is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions, unless its use is 
limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets 
without donor restrictions. Expirations of restrictions on net assets are reported as net 
assets released from restrictions.  

Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Organization and its eight 
wholly owned subsidiaries, Washington Heights PCS, LLC, STAR Harlem PCS, LLC, Infinity 
PCS, LLC, AMP PCS, LLC, Freedom PCS, LLC, Bronx PCS II, Bronx PCS III and KIPP 
Beyond PCS, LLC. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

(9) 



  
  
 

 

 
   

  
 

 
  

   
     

      
 

   
   

   
  

    
 

 
 

     
     

      
 

 
   

         
 

 
 

 
  

    
   

   
  

 
 

     
 

     
    
  

     
 

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits. 

Grants and Contract Receivables 
Grants and contract receivables primarily consist of amounts due from the New York 
Department of Education for federal and state subsidy programs and private grants. Grants 
and contract receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
outstanding balances. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, an allowance was not warranted. 

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 
Prepaid expenses and other assets include payments to other entities for services 
applicable to future accounting periods such as tenant contribution deposits, rental 
payments and insurance premiums. The cost of the prepaid expenses and other assets are 
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather when purchased. 

Governmental Funding 
Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status is 
based on the number of students enrolled. The revenue is recorded when services are 
performed in accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and state funds are 
recognized by the School when the conditions are met. 

Revenue from other government grants to which the School is entitled is recognized mostly 
on student enrollment. Some grants are provided for specific educational endeavors which 
are not based on student enrollment and are recorded when conditions are met by the grant 
agreement and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are 
recognized as revenue when the School has incurred expenditures in compliance with 
specific contract or grant provisions. 

Federal and state funds received prior to the services provided or the related expenditures 
being incurred are deferred and recorded as refundable advances in the statement of 
financial position. The School received cost reimbursable grants of $794,644 and $85,799 
that have not been recognized at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectfully, because qualifying 
expenditures have not yet been incurred. 

Contributions 
The School reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received 
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without 
restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements of activities as net assets released 
from restrictions. A contribution is conditional if a right of return or right of release exists as 
well as a barrier. The conditional contribution is recognized once the conditions have been 
met. 

(10) 



  
  
 

 

 
   

 
     

   
   

   
 

 
 
 

  
 

  
    
     

   
   

 
 

 
 

 
      

   
  

    
 

  
 

 

    
   

    
 

 

  
   

      
 

  
  

 
    

  
   

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Donated Goods and Services 
Donated goods and services are recorded at their fair value when such services are 
rendered or goods are donated. Contributed services are recognized as contributions if the 
services: (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) required specialized skills and are 
performed by people with those skills and would otherwise be purchased by the School and 
(c) are measurable. 

A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School. These in-kind 
contributions have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements since they do 
not meet the criteria for recognition under accounting standards for contributions. 

Equipment, Improvements, and Depreciation 
Property and equipment is recorded at cost. The School capitalizes purchases of equipment 
in excess of $2,500. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Property and equipment acquired with 
certain government contract funds are recorded as expenses when the grantor retains title. 

Improvements to the facility are amortized over the useful life as there is no set lease term 
for the school building. 

Expense Allocation 
The costs of providing services have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
consolidated statements of activities and in the consolidated statements of functional 
expenses. Allocation of expenses to program services and supporting services is completed 
by direct expenses related to each function. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
The School maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed 
federally insured limits. 

Income Taxes 
The School is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code (IRC) and applicable income tax regulations of the state of New York. No 
provision for income taxes has been established, as the School has no unrelated business 
activity. 

Uncertain Tax Positions 
The School recognizes and measures its unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with 
FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes. Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to be 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it is more likely than not that the 
positions will be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities. It also provides 
guidance for derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim 
periods, disclosure and transition. 

As of June 30, 2022, the School had no uncertain tax positions that qualified for either 
recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, the School 
had no interest or penalties related to income taxes. 

(11) 



  
  
 

 

 
   

 
      

     
  

 
 

    
  

     
 
    

 
   

   
 

      
     

 

        
                

    
 

 
  

    
     

    
   

   

   
  

    
 

       
    

 
    

 
       

  
  

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Subsequent Events 
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the School has evaluated events and 
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through October 28, 2022, the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY 

The School regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and 
commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of available funds. For 
purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over the next year, 
the School considers all expenditures related to its ongoing school activities of teaching, 
educating, and other school activities. In addition to financial assets available to meet 
general expenditures over the next year, the School operates with a balanced budget and 
anticipates collecting sufficient revenue from state and local per pupil subsidy, federal and 
state grants and contributions in the next fiscal year to cover general expenditures. 

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the following financial assets could be readily made available 
within one year of the statement of financial position date meet general expenditures: 

2022 2021 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $  14,661,002 $  7,007,553 
Grants and Contributions receivable, Net 8,122,752 4,217,926 

Total $  22,783,754 $  11,225,479 

NOTE 3 KIPP NYC ENTERPRISE 

The School is related to KIPP Academy Charter Schools through overlapping governance. 
Although not formally related to any other organizations, the School’s mission is aligned with 
a set of other tax exempt organizations, all of which support education in New York City. 
The other mission-aligned tax exempt organizations include KIPP New York, Inc. (KNYI), 
KIPP Facilities Holdings, Inc., and PCS Properties Foundation, Inc., collectively referred to 
as the KIPP NYC Enterprise. From time to time, these organizations support each other 
through access to capital in support of their missions.  

Amounts due to and from the KIPP NYC Enterprise represent short-term timing differences 
of expenses incurred on behalf of the School that have not been paid or received as of the 
financial statement date and are reflected on the financial statements as amounts Due to 
KIPP NYC Enterprise. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School owed the KIPP NYC 
Enterprise a total of $4,788,079 and $-0-, respectively. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, KIPP 
NYC Enterprise owed the School a total of $-0- and $1,753,681, respectively. 

In April 2018, KNYI provided a $2,000,000 interest-free loan to KIPP NYC Public Charter 
Schools to fund operations for the KIPP Freedom Charter Schools. The loan was paid in full 
during the year ending June 30, 2021. 

(12) 



  
  
 

 

 

   
 

              
        
           
      

                                    
            

          
        

 
 

  

     
 

                    
                                    
                                   
                      

              
 

 
   

     
 

                           
                      
                            

              
 

 
  

   
  

 
      

  
   

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 4 EQUIPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS 

Equipment and improvements consists of the following at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Furniture and Fixtures $  688,076 $  631,321 
Technology 7,559,833 7,049,886 
Equipment 416,323 377,423 
Leasehold Improvements 11,467,057 10,492,519 
Construction in Progress 49,323 -

Total 20,180,612 18,551,149 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (13,569,856) (11,643,715) 

Total Property and Equipment $  6,610,756 $  6,907,434 

NOTE 5 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSET BALANCES 

Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following purposes at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Athletic Programs $  22,296 $  6,167 
Arts and Music Programs 273 273 
Extra-curricular Programs 90,269 -
Academic Programs 195,898 366,062 

Total $  308,736 $  372,502 

NOTE 6 RELEASES ON NET ASSET BALANCES 

Net assets with donor restrictions were released for the following purposes at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Athletic Programs $  26,263 $  -
Academic Programs 301,262 417,544 
Student Food 9,732 47,034 

Total $  337,257 $  464,578 

NOTE 7 PENSION EXPENSE 

The School is part of the KIPP NYC 403(b) Retirement Plan, a multiemployer defined 
contribution plan, under Section 403(b) of the IRC which employees of the School can elect 
to contribute. Employees, who choose this plan, can contribute up to the level set by the 
Internal Revenue Service. The Employer match is a discretionary contribution. The employer 
contributions to this Plan amounted $2,127,604 and $1,901,592 for the years ended 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

(13) 



  
  
 

 

 
  

     
 

  
   

      
  

    
 

 
 

 

    
     

     
 

     
 

    
 

 
       
       

 
 

  

  
     

     
  

   
 

      
 

 
       

           
           

       
 

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 7 PENSION EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 

The School also contributes to the Teachers Retirement System of the City of New York, a 
multiemployer defined benefit pension plan (the Plan), on behalf of eligible teachers. The 
Plan provides New York City educators with retirement, disability, and death benefit 
services. The School’s participation in the plan constitutes less than 1% of total plan 
contributions. The funded status of the Plan was 78.4% at June 30, 2019, the date of the 
most recent actuarial calculation as indicated in the June 30, 2021 plan audit. The amount 
charged to operations for contributions to this Plan amounted to $689,375 and $672,485 for 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

NOTE 8 CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

In September 2018, the School and KIPP Academy Charter School entered into a lease for 
computer equipment under a capital lease that expires in 2023. As of June 30, 2022 and 
2021, the leased equipment are reflected at a cost of $1,299,870 and related accumulated 
depreciation of $1,054,067 and $808,263, respectively. The lease requires annual payments 
of principal of $245,804. The capital lease agreement states the total annual payments are 
equal to the cost value of the leased equipment and no interest is included in the payments. 

Future minimum payments under the capital lease as of June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2023 $  245,803 

Total Capital Lease Payments $  245,803 

NOTE 9 LOAN AGREEMENTS 

On June 14, 2019, the Organization entered into a loan agreement for $300,000 with KIPP 
Foundation. Interest accrues on the note at 1% per annum. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
the outstanding principal balance of this note was $300,000. Interest expense incurred for 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, was $3,000. The loan matures and full payment is 
due in June 2025. 

Minimum loan payments for each year subsequent to June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2023 $  100,000 
2024 100,000 
2025 100,000 
Total $  300,000 

(14) 



  
  
 

 

 
 

       
     

 
   

 
   

 

 

  
  

 

  
 

     
    

     
 

      
   

   
   

 
 

     
  

  
   

      
 

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 10 SCHOOL FACILITIES 

The School occupies several facilities at no cost. The School has an agreement with the 
New York City Department of Education for the following dedicated and shared space: 

York City, New York; 

City, New York;  

433 West 123rd Street, New 

586 West 177th Street, New York 

New York; 

New York; 

York City, New York; 
Street, New 

York; 

Bronx, New York; 

York. 

The School is responsible for any overtime-related costs for services provided beyond 
regular opening hours in all facilities. Costs for these kinds of services are included in 
contracted services in the accompanying consolidated statements of functional expenses. 

The School occupied 338 East 146th St., Bronx, NY, a private facility, from July 2020 
through August 2021. The lease began in July 2020 as a temporary home for KIPP 
Elements Primary School and was terminated in September 2021. Subsequently, KIPP 
Elements Primary School moved into the facility located at 501 Gerard Avenue, Bronx, NY 
(the Gerard Facility). 

The School also occupies approximately 132,500 square feet of space at 201 East 144th St. 
in the South Bronx, where the joint high school for KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and 
KIPP Academy Charter School resides. The facility was provided to the School at no cost, 
but the School must provide for continuing maintenance and operating expenses. The 
expenses are also included in building costs in the accompanying consolidated statements 
of functional expenses. 

(15) 



  
  
 

 

 
  

  
  

     
   

     
     

   
  

    
 

    
 

 
    

        
        
        
        
      

  
 

      
   

   
 
 

  

 
    

   
  

 
 

      
     

   
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 11 LEASE AGREEMENT 

On March 24, 2021 Gerard 501, LLC (Gerard) and the School entered into a sublease for 
the Gerard Facility. The sublease was amended and restated on November 30, 2021. The 
term of the sublease payments started September 1, 2021 and is through June 30, 2042: 
however the School intends to terminate at its first option on June 30, 2032. The annual 
base rental payments are due based on the rental payment schedule indicated in the 
amended lease agreement. The payout required for the termination option is included in the 
subsequent payment schedule and will be amortized over the life of the lease term. In 
addition per the agreement, the School shall pay additional rent expenses that include 
facility maintenance, repairs, utilities, safety and other expenses as stated in the agreement. 

Minimum annual base rentals for each year subsequent to June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2023 $  4,596,567 
2024 4,646,567 
2025 4,696,567 
2026 4,790,498 
2027 4,841,583 

Thereafter 26,677,585 
Total $  50,249,367 

The total rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $5,811,454 and 
$-0-, respectively. Total rent expense also includes short-term leases. The deferred rent as 
of June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $1,976,021 and $-0-, respectively. 

NOTE 12 TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT 

The Knowledge is Power Program Foundation (KIPP Foundation) is a national, nonprofit 
organization that trains school leaders to open and run academically rigorous public 
schools. The School is a member of KIPP Foundation’s KIPP Network of Schools and, as 
such, is eligible for a range of benefits and fee-based services. 

The School has entered into a trademark license agreement with KIPP Foundation subject 
to a license fee of 1% per pupil operating revenue not to exceed $30,000 per elementary 
school, middle school, or high school. The School incurred licensing fees amounting to 
$383,102 and $323,414 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

(16) 



  
  
 

 

 
  

     
    

    
     

 
  

  
 
 

 

     

 
 

 
 

   
    

 

 

 
     

   
   

 
 

  

         
     

    
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 13 SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT 

The School is party to a fee agreement with KIPP NYC, LLC, a wholly owned disregarded 
entity of KIPP New York, Inc., for the back-office functions. The management fee is 12% of 
the revenue as defined in the services agreement. The management fee is 12% of the 
revenue as defined in the shared services agreement. The School incurred a management 
fee to LLC in the amount of $15,538,942 and $12,614,549 for the years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021, respectively. The amount due to LLC for shared services as of June 30, 
2022 and 2021 was $774,885 and $577,149, respectively. 

NOTE 14 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating expenses are presented in the statement of functional expenses classified 
according to the significant program activity related to the purpose for which the school 
exists or supporting service. 

The significant activities are: 

Program Services – Regular Education and Special Education 
Represents work (time and materials) that is specifically related to or necessary for the 
programming aspects of the School under the regular education and special education 
areas. The activities and related costs directly affecting students or parents fall under these 
program areas. 

Support Services 
Management and General 
Time and materials relating to operating the nonprogrammatic/back-end operational 
functions of the School are reflected as management and general expenses. These 
expenses include, but are not limited to, human resources, finance, and technology 
activities. 

NOTE 15 CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been 
provided in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for such potential claims. 

(17) 



  
  
 

 

 
 

   
  

  
   

      
   

 
     
   

 
     

  
    

    
 

 
 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 16 TENANT CONTRIBUTION 

As of July 13, 2020, the School entered into a lease anticipation, tenant contribution, pledge 
and repayment agreement (the Lease Anticipation Agreement) with KIPP Properties, LLC. 
In accordance with the Lease Anticipation Agreement, the School paid KIPP Properties, LLC 
a tenant contribution in the amount of $9,000,000 toward the costs of the new facilities to be 
leased to the School. As of June 30, 2021, the tenant contribution is included in prepaid 
expense and other assets in the statement of financial position. 

On August 27, 2021 the Lease Anticipation Agreement was terminated and the $9,000,000 
contribution was repaid to the Schools. 

On July 30, 2021, a lease agreement was entered into between Canal West 75, LLC and 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools, pursuant to which KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 
made a tenant contribution of $5,453,000 toward the cost of development of a school facility 
at 75 Canal Street West, Bronx, New York. As of June 30, 2022, the tenant contribution is 
included in prepaid expense and other assets in the statement of financial position. 

(18) 















  

   
  

 
 
 

 

 

                                                        
                                                                      

                                                                           
                                                                                                

                                                                                                              
                                                                                          

                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

 
                                                                                                       

                                                                                         
                                                                                          

                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                                     

                                                                                                      
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               

                                    

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP STAR COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
 Special 

Education Total 

Support
 Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$  8,315,819 
2,030,732 

60,000 
10,872 

-
163,227 
240,276 
104,193 
184,778 
334,292 

5,410 
561,717 
421,155 
66,014 
23,283 

282,336 
189,157 

-
3,743 
3,726 
1,317 
1,164 

143,334 
133,839 
27,542 

$ 475,520 
134,674 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 8,791,339 
2,165,406 

60,000 
10,872 

-
163,227 
240,276 
104,193 
184,778 
334,292 

5,410 
561,717 
421,155 
66,014 
23,283 

282,336 
189,157 

-
3,743 
3,726 
1,317 
1,164 

143,334 
133,839 
27,542 

$ -
-

2,002,295 
-

3,128 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

118,387 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 8,791,339 
2,165,406 
2,062,295 

10,872 
3,128 

163,227 
240,276 
104,193 
184,778 
334,292 

5,410 
561,717 
421,155 
66,014 
23,283 

282,336 
189,157 
118,387 

3,743 
3,726 
1,317 
1,164 

143,334 
133,839 
27,542 

Total Functional Expenses $  13,307,926 $ 610,194 $ 13,918,120 $ 2,123,810 $ 16,041,930 

(25) 



  

   
  

 
 
 

 

 

                                                        
                                                                      

                                                                           
                                                                                          

                                                                                                              
                                                                                                

                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

 
                                                                                                       

                                                                                         
                                                                                          

                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                                     

                                                                                                      
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                          
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               

                                    

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP NYC WASHINGTON HEIGHTS ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
 Special 

Education Total 

Support
 Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$  8,604,684 
2,264,735 

60,000 
306,906 

-
40,238 

264,992 
67,715 

134,754 
278,048 

4,912 
383,141 
458,302 
45,890 
24,022 

170,409 
188,010 

-
3,578 
4,064 
1,465 

7 
131,977 
227,739 
10,194 

$ 500,795 
124,057 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 9,105,479 
2,388,792 

60,000 
306,906 

-
40,238 

264,992 
67,715 

134,754 
278,048 

4,912 
383,141 
458,302 
45,890 
24,022 

170,409 
188,010 

-
3,578 
4,064 
1,465 

7 
131,977 
227,739 
10,194 

$ -
-

2,227,098 
-

3,209 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

122,846 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 9,105,479 
2,388,792 
2,287,098 

306,906 
3,209 

40,238 
264,992 
67,715 

134,754 
278,048 

4,912 
383,141 
458,302 
45,890 
24,022 

170,409 
188,010 
122,846 

3,578 
4,064 
1,465 

7 
131,977 
227,739 
10,194 

Total Functional Expenses $  13,675,782 $ 624,852 $ 14,300,634 $ 2,353,153 $ 16,653,787 

(26) 



  

   
  

 
 
 

 

 

                                                        
                                                                      

                                                                           
                                                                                                

                                                                                                              
                                                                                          

                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

 
                                                                                                                

                                                                                         
                                                                                          

                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                                     

                                                                                                
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               

                                    

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
KIPP AMP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
 Special 

Education Total 

Support
 Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Grants to Related Entities 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$  8,636,546 
2,198,471 

60,000 
10,853 

-
223,992 
300,000 
177,680 

48,494 
217,870 
308,628 

514 
471,146 
502,127 
137,856 
32,336 

204,637 
170,631 

-
10,255 

2,928 
1,317 
1,164 

160,321 
252,520 
20,979 

$ 431,199 
103,263 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 9,067,745 
2,301,734 

60,000 
10,853 

-
223,992 
300,000 
177,680 
48,494 

217,870 
308,628 

514 
471,146 
502,127 
137,856 
32,336 

204,637 
170,631 

-
10,255 
2,928 
1,317 
1,164 

160,321 
252,520 
20,979 

$ -
-

2,193,963 
-

3,150 
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

115,046 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 9,067,745 
2,301,734 
2,253,963 

10,853 
3,150 

223,992 
300,000 
177,680 
48,494 

217,870 
308,628 

514 
471,146 
502,127 
137,856 
32,336 

204,637 
170,631 
115,046 
10,255 
2,928 
1,317 
1,164 

160,321 
252,520 
20,979 

Total Functional Expenses $  14,151,265 $ 534,462 $ 14,685,727 $ 2,312,159 $ 16,997,886 

(27) 



  

   
  

 
 
 

 

 

                                               
                                                                      

                                                                           
                                                                                                

                                                                                                          
                                                                                

                                                                                 
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

 
                                                                                                 

                                                                                
                                                                                          

                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                
                                                                                         
                                                                                                     

                                                                                                
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                         

                                                                                                
                                                                                         
                                                                                               

                                 

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP INFINITY ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
 Special 

Education Total 

Support
 Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Use of Donated Materials and Services 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$  23,074,393 
6,664,641 

83,102 
27,656 

-
564,352 
687,129 

81,572 
308,433 
961,543 

28,555 
2,516,632 

949,400 
124,219 
33,525 

2,181,041 
326,987 

-
13,771 

9,053 
2,437 
2,786 

359,675 
43,086 

607,285 
82,570 

$ 1,763,028 
341,712 

-
-
-

74,954 
3,827 

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 24,837,421 
7,006,353 

83,102 
27,656 

-
639,306 
690,956 
81,572 

308,433 
961,543 

28,555 
2,516,632 

949,400 
124,219 
33,525 

2,181,041 
326,987 

-
13,771 
9,053 
2,437 
2,786 

359,675 
43,086 

607,285 
82,570 

$ -
-

4,706,751 
-

10,390 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

337,658 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 24,837,421 
7,006,353 
4,789,853 

27,656 
10,390 

639,306 
690,956 
81,572 

308,433 
961,543 

28,555 
2,516,632 

949,400 
124,219 
33,525 

2,181,041 
326,987 
337,658 
13,771 
9,053 
2,437 
2,786 

359,675 
43,086 

607,285 
82,570 

Total Functional Expenses $  39,733,843 $ 2,183,521 $ 41,917,364 $ 5,054,799 $ 46,972,163 

(28) 



  

  
  

 
 
 

 

 

                                                        
                                                                      

                                                                           
                                                                                                

                                                                                                              
                                                                                          

                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

 
                                                                        

                                                                                         
                                                                                          

                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                                         

                                                                                                
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

                                    

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP FREEDOM CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
 Special 

Education Total 

Support
 Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 

$  6,936,484 
1,649,681 

60,000 
12,670 

-
251,338 
258,806 

11,668 
141,135 
528,570 

22,323 
341,099 
418,805 
55,647 
31,193 

313,734 
195,304 

-
18,748 

6,036 
1,323 
1,646 

141,736 
624,980 

$ 604,694 
126,370 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 7,541,178 
1,776,051 

60,000 
12,670 

-
251,338 
258,806 
11,668 

141,135 
528,570 

22,323 
341,099 
418,805 
55,647 
31,193 

313,734 
195,304 

-
18,748 
6,036 
1,323 
1,646 

141,736 
624,980 

$ -
-

1,698,175 
-

2,387 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

80,199 
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 7,541,178 
1,776,051 
1,758,175 

12,670 
2,387 

251,338 
258,806 
11,668 

141,135 
528,570 

22,323 
341,099 
418,805 
55,647 
31,193 

313,734 
195,304 
80,199 
18,748 
6,036 
1,323 
1,646 

141,736 
624,980 

Total Functional Expenses $  12,022,926 $ 731,064 $ 12,753,990 $ 1,780,761 $ 14,534,751 

(29) 



  

  
  

 
 
 

 

 

                                                          
                                                                                

                                                                                                     
                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                

                                                                                         
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                         

  
                                                                                                       

                                                                                         
                                                                                          

                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                
                                                                                               
                                                                                                             
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                               

                                            

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL II 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
 Special 

Education Total 

Support 
Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 

$ 1,907,613 
459,429 

-
2,952 

-
62,175 

138,122 
4,453 

97,933 
225,333 

8,461 
176,066 
249,488 

10,359 
32,416 

1,264,412 
25,099 

-
1,513 
1,519 
2,886 

64,222 
14,070 

$ 290,302 
75,812 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,197,915 
535,241 

-
2,952 

-
62,175 

138,122 
4,453 

97,933 
225,333 

8,461 
176,066 
249,488 
10,359 
32,416 

1,264,412 
25,099 

-
1,513 
1,519 
2,886 

64,222 
14,070 

$ -
-

592,647 
-

302 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,446 
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,197,915 
535,241 
592,647 

2,952 
302 

62,175 
138,122 

4,453 
97,933 

225,333 

8,461 
176,066 
249,488 
10,359 
32,416 

1,264,412 
25,099 

1,446 
1,513 
1,519 
2,886 

64,222 
14,070 

Total Functional Expenses $ 4,748,521 $ 366,114 $  5,114,635 $ 594,395 $ 5,709,030 

(30) 



  

 
  

 
 
 

 

 

                                                        
                                                                      

                                                                           
                                                                                                

                                                                                                              
                                                                                          

                                                                                         
                                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                                                         

 
                                                                              

                                                                                         
                                                                                          

                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                
                                                                                         
                                                                                                         

                                                                                                      
                                                                                                     

                                                                                                      
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                               

                                    

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL III 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
 Special 

Education Total 

Support 
Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Grants to Related Entities 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 

$  5,468,642 
1,309,426 

60,000 
23,765 

-
182,543 
191,215 
239,319 

88,075 
114,126 
345,893 

2,114 
261,550 
580,815 
14,400 
14,828 

4,470,042 
124,563 

-
5,889 
7,760 
1,317 
2,382 

97,523 
54,303 

$ 744,685 
186,375 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 6,213,327 
1,495,801 

60,000 
23,765 

-
182,543 
191,215 
239,319 
88,075 

114,126 
345,893 

2,114 
261,550 
580,815 
14,400 
14,828 

4,470,042 
124,563 

-
5,889 
7,760 
1,317 
2,382 

97,523 
54,303 

$ -
-

1,818,445 
-

2,015 
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

68,374 
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 6,213,327 
1,495,801 
1,878,445 

23,765 
2,015 

182,543 
191,215 
239,319 
88,075 

114,126 
345,893 

2,114 
261,550 
580,815 
14,400 
14,828 

4,470,042 
124,563 
68,374 
5,889 
7,760 
1,317 
2,382 

97,523 
54,303 

Total Functional Expenses $  13,660,490 $ 931,060 $ 14,591,550 $ 1,888,834 $ 16,480,384 

(31) 



  

  
  

 
 
 

 

 

                                                            
                                                                                 

                                                                                                     
                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                

                                                                                               
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                         

 
                                                                                                                

                                                                                         
                                                                                          

                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                             
                                                                                                     
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                                               

                                           

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP BEYOND CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
 Special 

Education Total 

Support 
Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Academic Programming 
Field Lessons 
Professional Development 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Student Transportation and 

Other Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Events 
Printing and Publications 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Insurance 
Postage and Shipping 
Candidate Recruiting 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$ 1,281,298 
282,511 

-
3,314 

-
16,561 
59,126 
7,349 

22,524 
259,923 

869 
144,415 
104,112 

6,742 
13,436 

1,156,544 
9,330 

-
1,860 
2,097 

10,997 
12,568 
63,979 

$ 99,751 
24,255 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 1,381,049 
306,766 

-
3,314 

-
16,561 
59,126 
7,349 

22,524 
259,923 

869 
144,415 
104,112 

6,742 
13,436 

1,156,544 
9,330 

-
1,860 
2,097 

10,997 
12,568 
63,979 

$ -
-

299,568 
-

180 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,403 
-
-
-
-
-

$ 1,381,049 
306,766 
299,568 

3,314 
180 

16,561 
59,126 
7,349 

22,524 
259,923 

869 
144,415 
104,112 

6,742 
13,436 

1,156,544 
9,330 
1,403 
1,860 
2,097 

10,997 
12,568 
63,979 

Total Functional Expenses $  3,459,555 $ 124,006 $  3,583,561 $ 301,151 $ 3,884,712 

(32) 



  

  
  

 
 
 

 

 

                                                                                          
                                                                                                      

                                                                                     
                                                                                                               

                                                                                         
                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                     
                                                                                               

                                                                        

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

KIPP NEW YORK PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT) 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
 Special 

Education Total 

Support 
Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Litigation and Legal Services Fee 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Other Professional Services 
Grants to Related Entities 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Uncollectible Receivables 

$ (1,590) 
3,768 

286 
500,000 

29 
4,615 

29,000 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ (1,590) 
3,768 

-
286 

500,000 
29 

4,615 
29,000 

$ -
-

5,250 
-
-
-
-
-

$ (1,590) 
3,768 
5,250 

286 
500,000 

29 
4,615 

29,000 

Total Functional Expenses $ 536,108 $ - $ 536,108 $ 5,250 $ 541,358 

(33) 



  
  

  

 
 

 

 
            
              
                 
                
              
                
              
                
              
                
              
                
              
                
              

           

                   
                  
                   
                  
                  
                   
                  
                   
                  
                  
                  
                   
                  
                   
                  

  
             

                
               
                 
                
                
                
                
                
                 
                
                 
                
                
               

               

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Federal Grantor/ Assistance 
Pass-Through Grantor/ Listing 
Program Title Numbers 

U.S. Department of Education: 

Pass-through New York Department of Education: 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (AMP) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (AMP) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BEY) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (FRE) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (FRE) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BRX2) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BRX2) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BRX3) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (BRX3) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (INF) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (INF) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (WH) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (WH) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (STR) 84.010A 
Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement (STR) 84.010A 

Total Title I Grant - Improving Academic Achievement 

Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (AMP) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (AMP) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BEY) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (FRE) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (FRE) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BRX2) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BRX2) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BRX3) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (BRX3) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (INF) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (INF) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (WH) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (WH) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (STR) 84.367A 
Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal Training, Recruitment (STR) 84.367A 

Total Title II Grant - Teaching, Principal 
 Training, Recruitment 

Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (AMP) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (AMP) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (FRE) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (FRE) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (BRX2) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (BRX2) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (BRX3) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (BRX3) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (INF) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (INF) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (WH) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (WH) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (STR) 84.424A 
Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation (STR) 84.424A 

Total Title IV Grant - SSAE Allocation 

Pass-
Through 
Grantor s 
Number 

0021-214294 
0021-224294 
0021-225720 
0021-215445 
0021-225445 
0021-215515 
0021-225515 
0021-215520 
0021-225520 
0021-214296 
0021-224296 
0021-214160 
0021-224160 
0021-214282 
0021-224282 

0147-214294 
0147-224294 
0147-225720 
0147-215445 
0147-225445 
0147-215515 
0147-225515 
0147-215520 
0147-225520 
0147-214296 
0147-224296 
0147-214160 
0147-224160 
0147-214282 
0147-224282 

0204-214294 
0204-224294 
0204-215445 
0204-225445 
0204-215515 
0204-225515 
0204-215520 
0204-225520 
0204-214296 
0204-224296 
0204-214160 
0204-224160 
0204-214282 
0204-224282 

Grant/ Federal 
Contract Disbursements/ 
Period Expenditures 

9/1/20-8/31/21 $  55,378 
9/1/21-8/31/22 275,984 
9/1/21-8/31/22 9,296 
9/1/20-8/31/21 43,923 
9/1/21-8/31/22 316,723 
9/1/20-8/31/21 23,385 
9/1/21-8/31/22 213,321 
9/1/20-8/31/21 25,877 
9/1/21-8/31/22 310,509 
9/1/20-8/31/21 87,959 
9/1/21-8/31/22 506,085 
9/1/20-8/31/21 64,558 
9/1/21-8/31/22 292,769 
9/1/20-8/31/21 61,843 
9/1/21-8/31/22 289,387 

2,576,997 

9/1/20-8/31/21 5,929 
9/1/21-8/31/22 59,272 
9/1/21-8/31/22 2,106 
9/1/20-8/31/21 10,314 
9/1/21-8/31/22 45,426 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,232 
9/1/21-8/31/22 26,272 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,448 
9/1/21-8/31/22 41,817 
9/1/20-8/31/21 15,055 
9/1/21-8/31/22 90,151 
9/1/20-8/31/21 4,624 
9/1/21-8/31/22 48,431 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,406 
9/1/21-8/31/22 52,370 

417,853 

9/1/20-8/31/21 4,033 
9/1/21-8/31/22 19,442 
9/1/20-8/31/21 1,758 
9/1/21-8/31/22 15,677 
9/1/20-8/31/21 1,667 
9/1/21-8/31/22 8,694 
9/1/20-8/31/21 1,667 
9/1/21-8/31/22 9,614 
9/1/20-8/31/21 6,950 
9/1/21-8/31/22 35,783 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,547 
9/1/21-8/31/22 24,015 
9/1/20-8/31/21 5,002 
9/1/21-8/31/22 22,374 

162,223 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
(34) 



  
  

  

 
 

 

 

           
              
                
              

              
             

              
             

               
           
                
           
           

           

            
               

            
             
             

         
            
            
         

              
              
              

              
              
              
              

 
              

        

   
 

 
 
 
 

  

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Federal Grantor/ Assistance 
Pass-Through Grantor/ Listing 
Program Title Numbers 

U.S. Department of Education (Continued) 

Cares Act - ESSER I (AMP) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (AMP) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (BEY) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (FRE) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER I (BRX2) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (BRX2) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER I (BRX3) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (BRX3) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER I (INF) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (INF) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER I (WHA) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (WHA) 84.425D 
Cares Act - ESSER II (STR) 84.425D 

Total Cares Act - Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER I) 

Cares Act- ARP (AMP) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (BEY) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (FRE) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (BRX2) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (BRX3) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (INF) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (WHA) 84.425U 
Cares Act- ARP (STR) 84.425U 

Total Cares Act - American Rescue Plan Act (ARP) 

CSP (AMP) 84.282A 
CSP (INF) 84.282A 

Total Charter School (CSP) 

SEED (BRX2) 84.423A 
SEED (BRX3) 84.423A 
SEED (INF) 84.423A 
SEED (STR) 84.423A 

Total Supporting Effective Educator Development 
Grant Program (SEED) 

Total U.S. Department of Education 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: 
Pass-through New York Department of Education: 

Child Care Stabilization Grant (AMP) 93.575 
Child Care Stabilization Grant (INF) 93.575 
Child Care Stabilization Grant (WHA) 93.575 
Child Care Stabilization Grant (STR) 93.575 
Total Child Care Stabilization Grant 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Pass-
Through 
Grantor s 
Number 

5890-214294 
5891-214294 
5891-225720 
5891-215445 
5890-215515 
5891-215515 
5890-215520 
5891-215520 
5890-214296 
5891-214296 
5890-214160 
5891-214160 
5891-214282 

5880-214294 
5880-225720 
5880-215445 
5880-215515 
5880-215520 
5880-214296 
5880-214160 
5880-214282 

NYSED 
NYSED 

29246977 
29246977 
29246977 
29246977 

OCFS 
OCFS 
OCFS 
OCFS 

Grant/ Federal 
Contract Disbursements/ 
Period Expenditures 

3/13/20-9/30/22 $  22,642 

3/13/20-9/30/23 816,689 

3/13/20-9/30/23 34,231 

3/13/20-9/30/23 992,214 

3/13/20-9/30/22 15,593 

3/13/20-9/30/23 470,240 

3/13/20-9/30/22 13,082 

3/13/20-9/30/23 682,912 
3/13/20-9/30/22 46,077 
3/13/20-9/30/23 2,041,270 
3/13/20-9/30/22 6,681 
3/13/20-9/30/23 1,015,933 
3/13/20-9/30/23 1,125,633 

7,283,197 

3/13/20-9/30/24 339,935 

3/13/20-9/30/24 44,084 

3/13/20-9/30/24 574,887 

3/13/20-9/30/24 163,006 

3/13/20-9/30/24 779,812 

3/13/20-9/30/24 1,093,627 

3/13/20-9/30/24 395,283 

3/13/20-9/30/24 466,773 
3,857,407 

7/1/20-9/30/20 15,600 

7/1/20-9/30/20 34,350 
49,950 

7/1/21-6/30/22 16,670 

7/1/21-6/30/22 16,670 

7/1/21-6/30/22 13,050 

1/1/22-9/30/22 16,463 

62,853 

14,410,480 

7/1/2021-9/30/2023 7,523 

7/1/2021-9/30/2023 2,587 

7/1/2021-9/30/2023 1,938 

7/1/2021-9/30/2023 1,076 
13,124 

13,124 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
(35) 



  
  

  

 
 

 

 
          

               
              
               
              
            
              
              
            

            

 
            

           
             

               
         

         

    

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Pass-
Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor/ 
Program Title 

Assistance 
Listing 

Numbers 

Through 
Grantor s 
Number 

Grant/ 
Contract 
Period 

Federal 
Disbursements/ 

Expenditures 

Federal Communications Commission: 
Pass-through New York Department of Education: 

ECF (AMP) 
ECF (BEY) 
ECF (FRE) 
ECF (BRX2) 
ECF (BRX3) 
ECF (INF) 
ECF (WHA) 
ECF (STR) 
Total Emergency Connectivity Fund (ECF) 

32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 
32.009 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

$  63,562 
3,084 

48,206 
6,355 

34,114 
119,893 

41,141 
72,725 

389,080 

Total Federal Communications Commission 389,080 

U.S. Department of Agriculture: 

Pass-through New York Department of Education: 
School Food Program- Breakfast (INF) 
School Food Program- Lunch and Snack (INF) 
School Food Program- Summer School Food Service (INF) 
USDA Donation 

Child Nutrition Cluster Total 

10.553 
10.555 
10.559 
10.555 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

7/1/21-6/30/22 
7/1/21-6/30/22 
7/1/21-6/30/22 
7/1/21-6/30/22 

588,523 
1,816,341 

414,566 
43,086 

2,862,516 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 2,862,516 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $  17,675,200 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
(36) 



  
   

  

 

 
  

  
     

   

 
 

  

  
    

       
 

 
 
 

   

    
        
   

     
 
 

 

    
 

 
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1 GENERAL INFORMATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activities of the 
federal financial assistance programs of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (the School). 
Financial awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as financial assistance 
passed through other governmental agencies or nonprofit organizations, are included in the 
schedule. 

NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant 
activity of the School and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in 
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents only a selected portion of the 
activities of the School. It is not intended to, nor does it, present either the balance sheet, 
revenue, expenditures, or changes in net assets. The financial activity for the 
aforementioned awards is reported in the School’s consolidated statements of activities. 

NOTE 4 INDIRECT COST RATE 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost 
rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

(37) 





 

 

 
      

   
  
      

        
        

  

 
  
     

 
         

   
   

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
October 28, 2022 

(39) 





 

 

 
 

  
 

  
   

    
  

     
 

      
   

  
 

      
 

 
      

 
      

      
  

     
  

   
   

      
    

   
  

 
      

 
 

Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will 
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ compliance with the requirements of 
each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 

exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ compliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

obtain an understanding of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools’ internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

(41) 



 

 

   
   

      
 

     
    

   
      

    
     

 
 

 
    

     
  

  
   

 
   

 
   

    
 

    
  

      
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
October 28, 2022 

(42) 



  
   

  

 

 

 
 

 
   

 
   

 

  
         

    
             

 
 

  
 

  

          

   
                          

 
    

 
 

 
   

                    
 
 

 
 
    
 
    

  
 

     
  

     
  

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 

that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)?  yes X  none reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?  yes X  no 

Federal Awards 

1. Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? yes    X no 

that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)? yes   X  none reported 

2. Type of auditor’s report issued on
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified 

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no 

Identification of Major Federal Programs 

Assistance Listing Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.425D U.S. Department of Education – Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 
(ESSER I & ESSER II) 

84.425U U.S. Department of Education – American
Rescue Plan Act (ARP) 

10.553 / 10.555 / 10.559 U.S. Department of Agriculture – Breakfast 
Program, National Lunch Program and Summer
School Program 

(43) 



  
  

  

 

    
  

  
 

                       
 
 

  

 
 

 
  

 
   

   
       

   
   

  
 

   
  

    
 

   

     
   

 
 

   
       

  
 

 
   

    
 

     
   

 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results (Continued) 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A or Type B programs was: $ 750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no 

Section II – Consolidated Financial Statement Findings 

2021 – 001 

Type of Finding: 

Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Condition: During the performance of the audit, adjustments for the Gerard Facility operating lease 
were required to properly record the operating lease rental expense along with its termination option 
payout on a straight-line basis and record related deferred rent. The impact on the financial statements 
was an increase in liabilities and change in net assets of $2,176,021. Timely and accurate account 
reconciliations are a necessary step in ensuring that financial statements are fairly stated in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP. 

Criteria: Management is responsible for the accuracy and completeness of all financial records and 
related information. Internal controls should be in place to provide reasonable assurance that financial 
statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

Context: Financial statements should be prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  

Effect: The potential exists that misstatements of the annual financial statements could occur and not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, by the organization’s internal controls. 

Cause: During the initial evaluation of the lease, the proper accounting guidance was not applied to 
properly expense the lease on a straight-line-basis since the payments escalate throughout the term. In 
addition, the option to terminate the lease at its 10 year anniversary is required to be included in the 
lease schedule. 

Recommendation: We recommend that management evaluate all general ledger account balances to 
reflect appropriate interim and year-end balances prior to the commencement of the audit. We 
recommend all new transactions be evaluated for proper recording under U.S. GAAP. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: See accompanying corrective 
action plan for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

(44) 



  
  

  

 

 
   

 
       

 
 
 

  
 

    
 

KIPP NYC PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Programs 

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with the Federal Single 
Audit Act. 

Section IV – Prior Audit Findings 

There were no prior year findings required to be reported under the Federal Single Audit Act. 

(45) 





 

 

  
  

   
    

   
   

  
     

   

    

  
  

   

   
   

 

 
   
 

   

     
   

 
    

     
     

  

 
 

   

Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 
Page 2 

Management’s estimate of the functional allocation of expenses shared between programs, 
management and general, and fundraising is based on a reasonable and consistent basis using 
factors such as direct payroll allocation, square footage, full time equivalents within each 
department, and total direct expenses. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the allocation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Consolidated Financial statement disclosures 
Certain consolidated financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to consolidate financial statement users. There were no particularly sensitive consolidated 
financial statement disclosures. 

The consolidated financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit 
The completion of the audit was delayed for matters with the timing of the finance department’s 
completion of certain reconciliations and audit information. 

Uncorrected misstatements  
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. 

Corrected misstatements 
The following material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures were corrected by 
management: 

An audit adjustment was proposed and recorded by management to recognize the operating 
lease rental expense of the Gerard Facility along with the termination option and its related 
deferred rent in the current year on a straight-line basis. The net effect on the change in net assets 
was a decrease of $2,176,021 for the year ending June 30, 2022. 

Disagreements with management 
For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the consolidated financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose 
during our audit. 

Management representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 28, 2022. 



 

 

 
   

  
      

  
       

   

    
     

    
    

 

     
     

    
     

        
       

      
       

    
   

   
    

  
  

      
 

   
   

   

   
  

      
  

    
   

  

Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 
Page 3 

Management consultations with other independent accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the entity’s consolidated financial statements or a determination of the type 
of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our engagement. 

Supplementary information in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
With respect to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) accompanying the consolidated 
financial statements, on which we were engaged to report in relation to the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and 
methods of preparing the SEFA to determine that the SEFA complies with the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for 
such changes, and the SEFA is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the SEFA to the underlying accounting records used 
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves. 
We have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2022. 

With respect to the Supplemental Schedule of Financial Position By School, Schedule of Activities By 
School, Schedule of Functional Expenses – KIPP Star College Prep Charter School, Schedule of 
Functional Expenses – KIPP NYC Washington Heights Academy Charter School, Schedule of Functional 
Expenses – KIPP AMP Academy Charter School, Schedule of Functional Expenses – KIPP Infinity 
Charter School, Functional Expenses – KIPP Freedom Charter School, Functional Expenses – KIPP 
Bronx II Carter School, Functional Expenses – KIPP Bronx III Carter School, Functional Expenses – KIPP 
Beyond Charter School and Functional Expenses – KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (collectively, the 
supplementary information) accompanying the consolidated financial statements, on which we were 
engaged to report in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for 
such changes, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial 
statements themselves. We have issued our report thereon dated. 

* * * 



 
 

 

    
  

 

 
 

 

Board of Directors 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 
Page 4 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and 
management of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
October 28, 2022 





  
 

 

        
    

 
 

      

 

Board of Directors Management 
KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools 
Page 2 

We will review the status of this comment during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed 
the comment and suggestions with various entity personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss them in 
further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in 
implementing the recommendations. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, board of directors, 
and others within the entity, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
October 28, 2022 
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to be effectuated. 

Adjournment
    



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

      
   

                
             
                

               
              

        

        
               
     

            
             

          

           

                
 

          
              

               
  

    

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools
      

   

                
             
                

               
              

        

         
               
      

            
             

Opening of the Meeting 
          

Public Comments
           

Board Business 
                

 

Board Votes: 
          

o              

Executive Session 
               

  

Adjournment 
    



 
 

  
  

 
   

  
   

  
  

 

  
 

  

 
 

   
 

 
  

 

 
 

  

 
  

   
 

        

Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 

5 



 
 

   

 
  

   
 

    
 

 
 

 

 

  
 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

        

Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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	Structure Bookmarks
	     
	Property and equipment is recorded at cost. The School capitalizes purchases of equipment in excess of $2,500. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Property and equipment acquired with certain government contract funds are recorded as expenses when the grantor retains title. 




